
 

 

  
City Hall Council Chambers 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 
(760) 398-3502   �  www.coachella.org 

 

AGENDA 
OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA, 

THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT, 
COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION, 
COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
April 10, 2019 

5:00 p.m. 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER: — 5:00 P.M. 
 
2. ROLL CALL: 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS (CLOSED SESSION ITEMS): 
 
4. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: 
 

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING EXISTING LITIGATION pursuant 
to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1).   
Name of case: City of Coachella v. Thomas, Superior Court case number PSC 1504858 

 
b. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING EXISTING LITIGATION pursuant 

to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1).   
Name of case: Genevieve Thomas v. City of Coachella Superior Court case number PSC 
1801086 

 
c. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE 

SECTION 54957.6:  
 City Labor Negotiator: City Manager William B. Pattison, Jr./ 

Human Resources Manager Sandy Krause/ 
Public Works Director Maritza Martinez 

 Employee Organization:  Teamsters Local 1932 Representing 
Mid-Management Employees 



Agenda 
Page 2 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA April 10, 2019 

 
 

d. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTION 54957.6:  

 City Labor Negotiator: City Manager William B. Pattison, Jr. 
 Employee Organization:  Management Employees 

 
5. RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING: — 6:00 P.M. 
 
6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
7. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 

“At this time the Council/Board/Corporation/Authority may announce any items being pulled from the 
agenda or continued to another date or request the moving of an item on the agenda.” 

 
9. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 
 

a. Special Meeting Minutes of a Coachella City Council Study Session held on March 27, 2019. 
 

b. Regular Meeting Minutes of March 27, 2019, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection 
District, Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and 
Governmental Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to 
the Coachella Redevelopment Agency. 

 
10. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS: 
 

a. Recognition of 2019 Senior Inspiration Award Recipient Baudelio Sanchez 
 

b. Proclaiming May is Mental Health Month 
 
11. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
12. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

(It is recommended that Consent items be acted upon simultaneously unless separate discussion and/or 
action are requested by a Council Member or Member of the Audience.) 

 
a. Voucher Listings- Manual Checks/FY 2018-19 Expenditures as of April 10, 2019, 

$1,343,614.88. 
 

b. Adopt Ordinance No. 1137  An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Coachella, 
California, Adding Chapter 2.26 to Title 2 and Amending Sections 2.28.040 and 2.32.010 of the 
Municipal Code Regarding Commission Requirement (Second Reading) 

 



Agenda 
Page 3 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA April 10, 2019 

 
 

c. 2018-2019 Investment Policy: 
 
1. Resolution No. 2019-17 a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella 
2. Resolution No. WA-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Water Authority 
3. Resolution No. SD-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Sanitary District 
4. Resolution No. FD-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Fire Protection District 
5. Resolution No. CBL-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Education and Government 

Access Cable Channel Corporation 
 

d. Resolution No. 2019-23, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella, California, 
Approving Final Parcel Map No. 37083 

 
e. Maintenance of Effort Certification Statements Fiscal Year 2019/2020, the Local Streets and 

Roads Revenue Projections, as well as the Projected Five Year Measure A Capital Improvement 
Plans Budget for Measure A Funding 

 
f. Investment Report - January 2019 

 
g. Reimbursement Agreement by and between City of Coachella and 48 Van Buren, LLC for Van 

Buren Roadway Improvements, City Project No. ST-122 
 

h. Reimbursement Agreement by and between City of Coachella and Raven Ridge Development 
for Van Buren Roadway Improvements, City Project No. ST-122 

 
13. NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE): 
 

a. Resolution No. 2019-22, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella to adopt a list 
of Projects for Fiscal Year 2019/20, Funded by SB 1: Road Repair and Accountability Act. 

 
14. PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

 
None. 

 
15. PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 
 

“The public may address the City Council/Board/Corporation/Authority on any item of interest to the 
public that is not on the agenda, but is within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your 
comments to three (3) minutes.” 

 
16. REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 
 

a. Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees. 
 

b. City Manager's Comments. 



Agenda 
Page 4 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA April 10, 2019 

 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 

   
i Any writing or documents pertaining to an open session item provided to a majority of the City Council less than 

72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be made available for public inspection at the front counter of 
City Hall located at 1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, CA during normal business hours. 

 
 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 
 



 

ITEM  9.a.



 



-3-

ITEM 9.a.



 



 

ITEM  9.b.



 



 

 

  

City Hall Council Chambers 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3502     www.coachella.org 

 

MINUTES 

OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA, 

THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT, 

COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION, 

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

March 27, 2019 

5:00 p.m. 

6:00 p.m. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: — 5:00 P.M. 

 

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Coachella was called to order at 5:10 p.m. in the 

Council Chamber at City Hall by Mayor Pro Tem Martinez.  

 

 

2. ROLL CALL: 

 

Present:  Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Gonzalez, 

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez.  

 

Absent:  None. 

 

 

Item 8, Approval of the Agenda, was moved up to this portion of the meeting at the request of City Attorney 

Campos and City Manager Pattison: 

 

 Request by City Manager Pattison to add two urgency items to the agenda, negotiations with Mid-

Management [as 4.f.] and the (Executive) Management Group [as 4.g.]. 

 

Motion:   To add to the agenda by 4/5 vote the two items  

Made by:   Mayor Hernandez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Bautista  

Approved:   5-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-7-

ITEM 9.b.



Minutes 

Page 2 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 27, 2019 

 

Additionally, City Manager Pattison asked Item 10.a. to be continued and Item 13.d. to be tabled. 

Approval of the modified agenda was voted upon separately: 

 

Motion:   To continue Item 10.a.  

Made by:   Mayor Hernandez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Bautista  

Approved:   5-0, unanimously by voice vote 

 
Motion:  To table Item 13.d.  

Made by:   Mayor Hernandez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0-1, with Mayor Pro Tem Martinez abstaining. 

 

 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS (CLOSED SESSION ITEMS): 

 

None. 

 

 

4. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: 

 

City Attorney Carlos Campos asked Council to convene into Closed Session at 5:15 p.m. to discuss the 

following items: 

 

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)  

Better Neighborhoods, Inc. v. City of Coachella, et al, 

Superior Ct. of California, County of Riverside, Case No. RIC 1901583 

 

b. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)  

Citizens for Responsible Cannabis Development v. City of Coachella, et al, 

Superior Ct. of California, County of Riverside, Case No. RIC 1900596 

 

c. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)  

Ramona Rita Morales, et al. v. City of Coachella, et al.  

Superior Ct. of California, County of Riverside, Case No. RIC 1803060 

 

d. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)  

Desert Valleys Builders Association v. City Of Coachella, et al, 

Superior Ct. of California, County of Riverside, Case No. RIC 1900832 

 

e. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)  

City of Indio v. City of Coachella, et al, 

Superior Ct. of California, County of Riverside, Case No. PSC 1804374 

 

-8-

ITEM 9.b.



Minutes 

Page 3 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 27, 2019 

 

f. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE 

SECTION 54957.6:  

 City Labor Negotiator: City Manager William B. Pattison, Jr./ 

Human Resources Manager Sandy Krause 

Public Works Director Maritza Martinez 

 Employee Organization:  Teamsters Local 1932 Representing 

Mid-Management Employees 

 

g. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE 

SECTION 54957.6: 

 City Labor Negotiator: City Manager William B. Pattison, Jr. 

 Employee Organization: Management Employees 

 

5. RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING: — 6:00 P.M. 

 

The City Council reconvened into open session at 6:17 p.m.  

 

 

6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by City Treasurer Arturo Aviles. 

 

 

7. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

City Attorney Campos stated that direction was given in Closed Session, but no reportable action was 

taken. 

 

 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

 

Addition to and action on the Agenda took place earlier in the meeting. See page 1. 

 

9. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

 

a. Regular Meeting Minutes of March 13, 2019, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection 

District, Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and 

Governmental Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to 

the Coachella Redevelopment Agency. 

 

Motion:   To approve minutes as presented.  

Made by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Bautista 

Approved:   4-0-1, with Councilmember Beaman Jacinto abstaining 

-9-

ITEM 9.b.



Minutes 

Page 4 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 27, 2019 

 

 

10. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS: 

 

a. Recognition of 2019 Senior Inspiration Award Recipient Baudelio Sanchez 

Continued to the next meeting during Approval of the Agenda. See page 2.  

 

b. Presentation on Regional Homelessness Efforts by Path of Life Ministries 

 

11. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

 

None. 

 

 

12. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 

a. Voucher Listings — Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2018-19 Expenditures as of March 27, 2019, 

$1,302,164.54. 

 

b. Award of Professional Services Agreement to Powers Security Group Inc. for Security Guard 

Services for City Facilities, in the amount not to exceed $75,000. 

 

c. Approval of a Community Based Grant to Global Access Through Multi-Cultural Education in 

the Amount of $1,000 to Purchase Art and Technology Materials for the Dual Language 

Immersion Program at Cesar Chavez Elementary School 

 

d. Approval of execution of a Maintenance Agreement with West Coast Arborists, Inc. for the 

LLMD Tree Trimming Maintenance Project No. 030619B, in the not to exceed amount of 

$300,000 for a two-year term. 

 

e. Approval of a Community Based Grant to Raices Cultura in the Amount of $1,000.00 to Support 

its Video Production and Radio Broadcasting Training Programs 

 

f. Approval of a Community Based Grant to the Dr. Reynaldo J. Carreon Foundation in the 

Amount of $1,000.00 to Support the Higher Educational Pursuits of Underprivileged Students 

 

g. Approval of a Cooperative Agreement between the City of Coachella, Greater Coachella Valley 

Chamber of Commerce, Mexican Consulate and Telemundo for the 2019 Fiestas Patrias Event 

and authorize the Greater Coachella Valley Chamber of  Commerce to manage a Beer Garden 

for the Fiestas Patrias Event. 

 

Action:   Continued to next meeting 

 

h. Request to waive the Library Facility Fee for Parenting Classes provided by the Latino 

Commission Counseling Center. 

 

i. Approval of execution of a Maintenance Agreement with Vintage Landscape for Rancho Las 

Flores Project, in the not to exceed amount of $136,620.00 for a two-year term. 

-10-

ITEM 9.b.



Minutes 

Page 5 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 27, 2019 

 

 

j. Approval of execution of a Maintenance Agreement with Vintage Landscape for City Parks and 

Office Maintenance Project, in the not to exceed amount of $242,190.00 for a two-year term. 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation, Consent Calendar Items 12.a. through 

12.j., with the exception of Item 12.g. to be continued too the next meeting. 

 

Made by:   Councilmember Bautista 

Seconded by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Approved:   5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember 

Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   None. 

 

 

13. NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE): 

 

a. Ordinance No. 1137 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Coachella, California, 

Adding Chapter 2.26 to Title 2 and Amending Sections 2.28.040 and 2.32.010 of the Municipal 

Code Regarding Commission Requirements; Removing Non-Resident Appointee from 

Economic Development/Planning Sub-Committee (First Reading) 

 

Public Comment:  Michael Harrington 

Sandra Ramirez 

 

Motion:  To approve with modifications: 

 

 No member of a commission shall be an employee of the city; and 

 Change to four-fifths (4/5) vote to remove a member; and  

 Phase out will be end of Fiscal Year 2018-2019 (June 30, 2019). 

 

Made by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Gonzalez 

Approved:   5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Council-

member Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   None. 

 

-11-

ITEM 9.b.



Minutes 

Page 6 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 27, 2019 

 

 

b. Resolution No. 2019-15, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella, California 

Regarding Authorizing the Implementation of the Cannabis Social Equity Program and Adopt a 

Zero-Dollar Fee for Program Participants 

 

Motion:  To approve with modification: 

  

 Remove immigration status requirement to the extent that it’s allowed 

by state requirements [in program eligibility].  

 

Made by:   Councilmember Bautista 

Seconded by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Approved:   5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Council-

member Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   None. 

 

 

c. Authorize the City Manager to Execute Agreements with ChargePoint and Video Voice Data 

Communications for the Period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022, for the Purchase, 

Installation, Networking, and Maintenance Warranty for Two (2) Electric Vehicle Charging 

Stations at City Hall and Library in a Total Amount Not to Exceed $84,809 Plus a Contingency 

of $5,000 for a Total Amount of $89,809 Subject to Non-Substantive Changes Approved by the 

City Manager and City Attorney; and 

 

Resolution No. 2019-16 Establishing a Fee Schedule for Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 

Throughout the City of Coachella 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation.  

 

Made by:   Councilmember Gonzalez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Bautista 

Approved:   5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Council-

member Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   None. 

 

d. Discussion and Potential Action to Oppose Assembly Bill 854 Which Amends the Imperial 

Irrigation District Governance Structure 

 

(Item tabled during Approval of the Agenda, see page 2.) 

-12-

ITEM 9.b.



Minutes 

Page 7 

CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 27, 2019 

 

 

e. Construction Contract with Granite Construction Company in the amount of $482,000 and an 

amount of $48,000 for contingency for the construction of Green Bike Lane Project, Federal 

Project CML-5294 (010), City Project ST-84. 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation.  

 

Made by:   Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Bautista 

Approved:   5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Council-

member Gonzalez, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez and Mayor Hernandez 

NOES:   None. 

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   None. 

 

 

14. PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

 

None. 

 

 

15. PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

 

a. Beatrice Eslamboly 

b. Sara Sanchez 

 

 

16. REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

 

a. Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees. 

 

b. City Manager's Comments. 

 

17. ADJOURNMENT: 

 

There being no further business to come before the City Council and the Agencies, Mayor Hernandez 

adjourned the meeting at 8:15 p.m., followed by a motion from Councilmember Beaman Jacinto and a 

second from Councilmember Gonzalez. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

___________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

-13-

ITEM 9.b.



 



 

ITEM  10.a.



 



-17-

ITEM 10.a.



 



 

ITEM  10.b.



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, mental illness can effect anyone, regardless of age, background, 

employment, education and income level, with those who are very young and seniors among the 

most vulnerable; and 

 

WHEREAS, the National Alliance on Mental Illness reports that 1 in 5 American adults 

experiences mental illness in a given year, 1 in 5 youth aged 13–18  experiences a severe mental 

disorder at some point during their life and more than 2 million Americans age 65 and older 

experience some form of depression; and 

 

WHEREAS, there are treatments, services, and community support systems that are 

helping many with mental health conditions recover and be able to move forward to lead rich, 

fulfilling, productive lives; and 

 

WHEREAS, friends, family and community members play an important role in 

extending understanding and compassion about mental health and in promoting the wellness and 

recovery of people living with mental illness;  and   

 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Steven A. Hernandez, Mayor of the City of Coachella, by the 

power vested in me, do hereby recognize May 2019 as 
 

Mental Health Month 
 

and urge all citizens of the City of Coachella to recommit our community to increase awareness 

and understanding of mental health, expand the dialogue about the steps our citizens can take to 

promote mental health and wellness, and foster an understanding about the need for appropriate 

and accessible services for the mental health needs of all people.  

 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, I have hereunto set my 

hand and caused the official seal of the City of 

Coachella, California to be affixed this 10
th

 day of 

April, 2019. 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez, Mayor  

City of Coachella, California 

-21-

ITEM 10.b.



 



 

ITEM  12.a.



 



-25-

IT
E

M
 12.a.



-26-

IT
E

M
 12.a.



-27-

IT
E

M
 12.a.



-28-

IT
E

M
 12.a.



-29-

IT
E

M
 12.a.



-30-

IT
E

M
 12.a.



-31-

IT
E

M
 12.a.



-32-

IT
E

M
 12.a.



-33-

IT
E

M
 12.a.



-34-

IT
E

M
 12.a.



 

ITEM  12.b.



 



 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Carlos Campos, City Attorney  
 
SUBJECT: Adopt Ordinance No. 1137  An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 

Coachella, California, Adding Chapter 2.26 to Title 2 and Amending Sections 
2.28.040 and 2.32.010 of the Municipal Code Regarding Commission 
Requirements  

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 1137:  An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Coachella, 
California, Adding Chapter 2.26 to Title 2 and Amending Sections 2.28.040 and 2.32.010 of the 
Municipal Code Regarding Commission Requirements. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Recently, the City of Coachella (“City”) Council had discussions regarding City commissions 
including qualifications, appointment, and responsibilities.  With that, the Council requested that 
current requirements including membership criteria be updated for both the Planning 
Commission and Parks and Recreation Commission.  Additionally, the Council requested that 
the City’s Municipal Code be updated to include the general commission requirements in one 
location.    
 
Of note, while there were discussions about Chapter 4.30 Utility Users Tax and its Citizens 
Oversight Committee, we are not providing revisions at this time.  Chapter 4.30 was passed and 
approved by the City voters and thus we are not recommending updating Chapter 4.30.   
 
Finally, the Council had discussions regarding the composition of Council subcommittees, 
including limiting subcommittees to Council members and City staff.   
 
On March 27, 2019, the Council introduced and waived further reading of Ordinance No. 1137.  
At the same time, the Council added to the Ordinance the requirements that no member of a 
commission shall be an employee of the City and removal of a commission member requires a 
four-fifths (4/5) vote from the City Council.   
 
 
 
 

 

STAFF REPORT 
4/10/2019 

 

-37-

ITEM 12.b.



 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
In response to the Council’s direction, this Ordinance was drafted with their comments in mind 
and after a survey of other city municipal codes.   
 
This Ordinance would add Chapter 2.26 – Commission Member Requirements to the City’s 
Municipal Code, providing the general requirements for commissions in one location.  
Additionally, this Ordinance would amend both Chapter 2.28 and Chapter 2.32 of the City’s 
Municipal Code.   
 
A. Addition of Chapter 2.26 – Commission Member Requirements  
 
Adding Chapter 2.26 would provide general commission requirements, including, but not limited 
to, the following: 
 

• Section 2.26.020 Appointment  
o The Council sets the number of commission members. 
o The Mayor shall appoint commission members, with approval by the rest of the 

Council.  Pursuant to Government Code section 40605, in general law cities with 
an elective Mayor like the City, the Mayor with the approval of the City Council 
shall make all appointments to commissions unless otherwise specifically 
provided by statute.   

 
• Section 2.26.030 Qualifications  

o All commission members must be residents of the City and can serve on only one 
commission at any time.   

o No member of a commission shall be an employee of the city. 
 

• Section 2.26.040 Term 
o Commission members are appointed for four (4) year terms or less, unless a new 

commission is created and then members first appointed must be staggered.   
 

• Section 2.26.050 Organization/Meetings  
o This section describes the organization of the commissions and requirements on 

holding meetings.   
 

• Section 2.26.060 Purpose, power, and duties  
o The Council sets the purpose, power, and duties for all commissions in the Code 

section specific to each and may set compensation for commission members by 
ordinance or resolution.  
 

• Section 2.26.070 Removal of members  
o The Council may remove any commission member for any reason by a four-fifths 

(4/5) vote. 
o Commission members will be automatically removed if they miss three (3) 

consecutive meetings unexcused or fail to comply with certain ethics laws.   

-38-

ITEM 12.b.



 
 

 
Otherwise, the addition of Chapter 2.26 to the Municipal Code streamlines general commission 
requirements in one location. 
 
B. Amendment to Chapter 2.28 of the Municipal Code Related to the Parks and Recreation 
Commission 
 
The amendment to Chapter 2.28 provides for the Parks and Recreation Commission to be 
composed of five (5) adults; four (4) City residents and the desert recreation district general 
manager or a designated representative.  Additionally, one (1) member of the Council shall be a 
nonvoting, ex-official member of the commission.  It also clarifies that the desert recreation 
district general manager or a designated representative shall serve as a commissioner without 
compensation.   
 
C. Amendment to Chapter 2.32 of the Municipal Code Related to the Planning Commission 
 
The amendment to Chapter 2.32 provides that any member of the Planning Commission must be 
a resident of the City and deletes certain language that is redundant with the new Chapter 2.26.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS  
 
None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 

1. Ordinance No. 1137:  An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Coachella, 
California, Adding Chapter 2.26 to Title 2 and Amending Sections 2.28.040 and 2.32.010 of the 
Municipal Code Regarding Commission Requirements (Clean Version) 
 
2. Ordinance No. 1137  An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Coachella, 
California, Adding Chapter 2.26 to Title 2 and Amending Sections 2.28.040 and 2.32.010 of the 
Municipal Code Regarding Commission Requirements (Marked-Up Version)   
 

-39-

ITEM 12.b.



 



ORDINANCE NO. 1137     
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, ADDING CHAPTER 2.26 TO TITLE 2 
AND AMENDING SECTIONS 2.28.040 AND 2.32.010 OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING COMMISSION REQUIREMENTS  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Coachella (“City”) maintains a number of commissions that 
advise the City Council; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to update the current requirements for these commissions; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance will provide general requirements for commissions in one 
location of the City’s Municipal Code. 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

  
SECTION 1.  Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct 

and are incorporated into this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2.  Addition to Title 2 of the Coachella Municipal Code Related to 

Commission Requirements.  Coachella  Municipal Code Chapter 2.26 is hereby added to Title 2 
of the Coachella Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 
“Chapter 2.26 – Commission Member Requirements 
 
2.26.010 – Definitions  
 
 A. “Commission” means a group of city council-appointed persons having 

limited legislative powers to make decisions or recommendations to the city council on city 
issues. 

 
2.26.020 – Appointment   
 
 A. The number of members on each commission shall be set by the city 

council.  
 
 B. Unless otherwise provided by law, appointments to all commissions shall 

be made by the mayor, with approval by the city council, at open session of a regular or special 
city council meeting.  

 
 C. Members of the city council may be appointed by the majority of the city 

council to be nonvoting, ex-official members of a commission. 
 

-41-

ITEM 12.b.



          

Ordinance No. 1137 

 

 D. Interim vacancies shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term of 
the member replaced. 

 
2.26.030 – Qualifications  
 
 A. Unless otherwise specified in the code:  
 
  1. All members of commissions shall be residents of the city.   
 
  2. An individual may serve on only one commission at any time. 
 
  3. No member of a commission shall be an employee of the city. 
 
  4. If a commission member ceases to meet the required qualifications, 

he or she shall be disqualified from being a member of that commission.  
 
2.26.040 – Term 
 
 A. Members of commissions shall be appointed for four year terms or less.  

The term of each commission member shall expire on December 31st of the year that occurs no 
more than four years after the date of the appointment.   

 
 B. For a newly established commission, members first appointed shall be 

made on a staggered-term basis.   
 
2.26.050 – Organization/Meetings    
 
 A. Unless otherwise provided in the code: 
 
  1. Each January, commissions will organize and elect a chairperson 

and vice-chairperson from their membership for a one-year term.  In the chairperson’s or vice-
chairperson’s absence or disability, the commission may designate a chairperson or vice-
chairperson pro tempore.  Vacancies in either the chairperson or vice-chairperson position 
occurring prior to January may be filled as in the first instance, and a new chairperson or vice 
chairperson may be chosen at any time by majority vote of all members of the commission. 

 
  2. Regular meetings may be held on a day and time established by the 

commission and may be amended from time to time. 
 
  3. Each commission shall follow such rules and regulation 

established by the city council for the conduct of its business. 
 
  4. Special meetings may be called by the chairperson or a majority of 

the commission in accordance with state law. 
 

-42-

ITEM 12.b.



          

Ordinance No. 1137 

 

  5. The city manager shall designate an ex-officio staff person to serve 
as secretary and custodian of records who will not have a vote. 

 
  6. Minutes must be kept of all meetings and the secretary will deliver 

copies of minutes to the city manager and city clerk for filing and distribution to commission 
members. 

 
  7. A quorum shall be a majority of the commission.   
 
2.26.060 – Purpose, power, and duties  
 
 A. The purpose, powers and duties of all commissions are determined by the 

city council and set forth in the code section specific to each. From time to time, the city council 
may expand or retract powers and duties either temporarily or permanently and may, by 
ordinance or resolution, amend any chapter or section of this code.  

 
 B. Compensation for commissions shall be as set by ordinance or resolution 

of the city council.  
 
2.26.070 – Removal of members  
 
 A. Unless otherwise specified in the code: 
 
  1. A member of any commission may be removed at any time, with 

or without cause, by a four-fifths (4/5) vote of the city council. Such removal must be announced 
at a public meeting of the city council.  

 
  2. If a commission member fails to attend three (3) consecutive 

meetings, unless excused for cause by the commission chairperson, that member’s office is 
deemed vacant and the member’s term ended.  It shall be the responsibility of the chairperson to 
report attendance at each meeting of the commission to the city clerk.  

 
  3. Members will also be automatically removed for violating the 

Political Reform Act of 1974 as determined by the appropriate agency with authority to render 
such decisions or failing to comply with mandatory ethics training or conflict-of-interest filings 
required by the state or the city. 

  
SECTION 3.  Amendment to Chapter 2.28 of the Municipal Code Related to the Parks 

and Recreation Commission.  Section 2.28.040, subsection A, of Chapter 2.28 of the Coachella 
Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
“2.28.040 – Membership 
  
 Membership of this commission shall be as follows: 
 

-43-

ITEM 12.b.



          

Ordinance No. 1137 

 

 A. The total membership of the commission shall be made up of five adults in 
the following manner:  

 
1. Four adult resident community members to serve without 

compensation;  
 
2. The desert recreation district general manager or a designated 

representative shall serve as a commissioner without compensation; 
 
3. One member of the city council shall be a nonvoting, ex-official 

member of the commission.” 
    
SECTION 4.  Amendment to Chapter 2.32 of the Municipal Code Related to the 

Planning Commission.  Section 2.32.010 of Chapter 2.32 of the Coachella Municipal Code is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
“2.32.010 – Commission created-Membership  
 
 A city planning commission is created. The city planning commission shall 

consist of five regular members and one alternate member. Members of the planning commission 
shall be residents of the city.”  

 
SECTION 5.  CEQA.  The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) (the activity 
will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) 
and 15060(c)(3) (the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for 
resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly.  

 
SECTION 6. Severability.  If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, 

phrase, or portion of this Ordinance for any reason is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
adopted this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, 
sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

 
SECTION 7. Operative Date.  This Ordinance shall become operative on June 30, 2019.   
 
SECTION 8. Publication/Effective Date.  The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the 

City Clerk shall cause the same to be published within fifteen (15) days after its passage at least 
once, in a newspaper of general circulation, published and circulated in the City of Coachella, 
California.  This Ordinance of the City of Coachella shall be effective thirty (30) days after the 
date of its passage. 
 
 

-44-

ITEM 12.b.



          

Ordinance No. 1137 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10th day of April 2019. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Steven A. Hernandez  
Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Angela M. Zepeda 
City Clerk 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________ 
Carlos Campos 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-45-

ITEM 12.b.



          

Ordinance No. 1137 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 
CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 
) ss. 
) 

 
 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Ordinance No. 1137 was duly and regularly 
introduced at a meeting of the City Council on the 27th day of March 2019, and that thereafter the 
said ordinance was duly passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council on the 10th 
day of April 2019. 
 
AYES:    
   
NOES:    
   
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Andrea J. Carranza, MMC  
Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

-46-

ITEM 12.b.



           

ORDINANCE NO. 1137     
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, 
ADDING CHAPTER 2.26 TO TITLE 2 AND 
AMENDING SECTIONS 2.28.040 AND 2.32.010 OF 
THE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 
COMMISSION REQUIREMENTS  
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Coachella (“City”) maintains a number of commissions 
that advise the City Council; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to update the current requirements for these 
commissions; and  
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance will provide general requirements for commissions 
in one location of the City’s Municipal Code. 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

  
SECTION 1.  Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and 

correct and are incorporated into this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2.  Addition to Title 2 of the Coachella Municipal Code Related to 

Commission Requirements.  Coachella  Municipal Code Chapter 2.26 is hereby added to 
Title 2 of the Coachella Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 
“Chapter 2.26 – Commission Member Requirements 
 
2.26.010 – Definitions  
 

A. “Commission” means a group of city council-appointed persons 
having limited legislative powers to make decisions or recommendations 
to the city council on city issues. 

 
2.26.020 – Appointment   
 
 A. The number of members on each commission shall be set by the 

city council.  
 
 B. Unless otherwise provided by law, appointments to all 

commissions shall be made by the mayor, with approval by the city 
council, at open session of a regular or special city council meeting.  

 

-47-

ITEM 12.b.



           

 C. Members of the city council may be appointed by the majority of 
the city council to be nonvoting, ex-official members of a commission. 

 
 D. Interim vacancies shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired 

term of the member replaced. 
 
 2.26.030 – Qualifications  
 
  A. Unless otherwise specified in the code:  
 
  1. All members of commissions shall be residents of the city.   
 
  2. An individual may serve on only one commission at any 

time. 
 
  3. No member of a commission shall be an employee of the 

city. 
 
  4. If a commission member ceases to meet the required 

qualifications, he or she shall be disqualified from being a member 
of that commission.  

 
 2.26.040 – Term 
 
  A. Members of commissions shall be appointed for four year terms or 

less.  The term of each commission member shall expire on December 
31st of the year that occurs no more than four years after the date of the 
appointment.   

 
  B. For a newly established commission, members first appointed shall 

be made on a staggered-term basis.   
 
 2.26.050 – Organization/Meetings    

 
 A. Unless otherwise provided in the code: 
 
 1. Each January, commissions will organize and elect a 

chairperson and vice-chairperson from their membership for a one-
year term.  In the chairperson’s or vice-chairperson’s absence or 
disability, the commission may designate a chairperson or vice-
chairperson pro tempore.  Vacancies in either the chairperson or 
vice-chairperson position occurring prior to January may be filled 
as in the first instance, and a new chairperson or vice chairperson 
may be chosen at any time by majority vote of all members of the 
commission. 

 

-48-

ITEM 12.b.



           

 2. Regular meetings may be held on a day and time 
established by the commission and may be amended from time to 
time. 

 
 3. Each commission shall follow such rules and regulation 

established by the city council for the conduct of its business. 
 
 4. Special meetings may be called by the chairperson or a 

majority of the commission in accordance with state law. 
 
 5. The city manager shall designate an ex-officio staff person 

to serve as secretary and custodian of records who will not have a 
vote. 

 
 6. Minutes must be kept of all meetings and the secretary will 

deliver copies of minutes to the city manager and city clerk for 
filing and distribution to commission members. 

 
7. A quorum shall be a majority of the commission.   

 
 2.26.060 – Purpose, power, and duties  
 
  A. The purpose, powers and duties of all commissions are determined 

by the city council and set forth in the code section specific to each. From 
time to time, the city council may expand or retract powers and duties 
either temporarily or permanently and may, by ordinance or resolution, 
amend any chapter or section of this code.  

 
  B. Compensation for commissions shall be as set by ordinance or 

resolution of the city council.  
 
 2.26.070 – Removal of members  
 
  A. Unless otherwise specified in the code: 
 

 1. A member of any commission may be removed at any time, 
with or without cause, by a four-fifths (4/5) vote of the city 
council. Such removal must be announced at a public meeting of 
the city council.  

 
 2. If a commission member fails to attend three (3) 

consecutive meetings, unless excused for cause by the commission 
chairperson, that member’s office is deemed vacant and the 
member’s term ended.  It shall be the responsibility of the 
chairperson to report attendance at each meeting of the 
commission to the city clerk.  

-49-

ITEM 12.b.



           

 
 3. Members will also be automatically removed for violating 

the Political Reform Act of 1974 as determined by the appropriate 
agency with authority to render such decisions or failing to comply 
with mandatory ethics training or conflict-of-interest filings 
required by the state or the city. 

  
SECTION 3.  Amendment to Chapter 2.28 of the Municipal Code Related to the 

Parks and Recreation Commission.  Section 2.28.040, subsection A, of Chapter 2.28 of 
the Coachella Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
“2.28.040 – Membership 
  
 Membership of this commission shall be as follows: 
 
  A. The total membership of the commission shall be made up 

of five adults in the following manner:  
 
   i. Three Four adult resident community members 

appointed by the city council to serve without compensation;  
   ii iii. The One member of the city council shall appoint a 

member of the city council to serve as a commissioner be a nonvoting, ex-official 
member of the commission;.  

 
   iii  ii. The desert recreation district general manager or a 

designated representative shall serve as a commissioner without compensation.;”  
 

SECTION 4.  Amendment to Chapter 2.32 of the Municipal Code Related to the 
Planning Commission.  Section 2.32.010 of Chapter 2.32 of the Coachella Municipal 
Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
“2.32.010 – Commission created-Membership  
 
 A city planning commission is created. The city planning commission 
shall consist of five regular members and one alternate member, each of whom 
shall be appointed by the mayor with the approval of the council. Members of the 
planning commission may shall be residents of the city or business persons in the 
community who do not reside in the city. All members of the city council shall be 
nonvoting, ex-official members of the commission.”  

 
SECTION 5.  CEQA.  The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject 

to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) 
(the activity will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change 
in the environment) and 15060(c)(3) (the activity is not a project as defined in Section 
15378) of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, 

-50-

ITEM 12.b.



           

because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or 
indirectly.  

 
SECTION 6. Severability.  If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, 

clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance for any reason is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, 
subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any 
one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions 
thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 7. Operative Date.  This Ordinance shall become operative on June 
30, 2019.   

 
SECTION 8. Publication/Effective Date.  The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance 

and the City Clerk shall cause the same to be published within fifteen (15) days after its 
passage at least once, in a newspaper of general circulation, published and circulated in 
the City of Coachella, California.  This Ordinance of the City of Coachella shall be 
effective thirty (30) days after the date of its passage. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ____ of ___________, 2019 by the 
following vote: 
 

AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT: 
 

 ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
             
       Steven Hernandez, Mayor 
       City of Coachella 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Angela M. Zepeda, City Clerk 
City of Coachella 
 
 

-51-

ITEM 12.b.



           

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________  
Carlos Campos, Best Best & Krieger LLP 
City Attorney 
 

-52-

ITEM 12.b.



 

ITEM  12.c.



 



 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  William B. Pattison, Jr., City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: 2018-2019 Investment Policy: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2019-17 a Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Coachella 

2. Resolution No. WA-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Water Authority 
3. Resolution No. SD-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Sanitary District 
4. Resolution No. FD-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Fire Protection 

District 
5. Resolution No. CBL-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Education and 

Government Access Cable Channel Corporation  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
1. Approve Resolution No. 2019-17, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella, 

California to Amend and Reestablish the Investment Policy Originally Adopted July 9, 2003 
and Amended Annually by the City Council for fiscal year 2018-2019. 

 
2. Approve Resolution No. WA-2019-01, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the 

Coachella Water Authority, Coachella, California to Amend and Reestablish the Investment 
Policy Originally Adopted July 9, 2003 and Amended Annually by the Authority Board for 
fiscal year 2018-2019. 

 
3. Approve Resolution No. SD-2019-01, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the  

Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella, California to Amend and Reestablish the Investment 
Policy Originally Adopted July 9, 2003 and Amended Annually by the District Board for 
fiscal year 2017-2018. 

 
4. Approve Resolution No. FD-2019-01, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the  

Coachella Fire Protection District, Coachella, California to Amend and Reestablish the 
Investment Policy Originally Adopted July 9, 2003 and Amended Annually by the District 
Board for fiscal year 2018-2019. 

 
5. Approve Resolution No. CBL-2019-01, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the 

Coachella Educational and Governmental Access Cable Channel Corporation, Coachella, 
California to Amend and Reestablish the Investment Policy Originally Adopted July 9, 2003 
and Amended Annually by the Corporation Board for fiscal year 2018-2019. 

 

STAFF REPORT 
4/10/2019 

 

-55-

ITEM 12.c.



 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
The California Government Code, City and Agency Resolutions, and their respective Investment 
Policies require that their respective Investment Policies be updated, reviewed and then filed 
with the legislative body on an annual basis.  This is a request to reestablish the investment 
policy currently in effect for the 2017-2018 fiscal year. The City and its related agencies have 
been following the current investment policy as adopted July 9, 2003 and as amended on an 
annual basis. 
 
Staff requested that PFM Asset Management review our existing investment policy and 
recommend changes to assure that the City’s policy is comprehensive and remains compliant 
with all applicable California Government Code statutes regulating the investment of public 
funds. The recommended changes are outlined and explained in the attached memo from PFM. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact a part of this action. 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 

1. Coachella Investment Policy Approved February 2018 
2. Recommended Coachella Investment Policy 2019 
3. PFM Memo of recommended changes 
4. Investment Policy Resolution City 2018-2019 
5. Investment Policy Resolution Water 2018-2019 
6. Investment Policy Resolution Sanitary 2018-2019 
7. Investment Policy Resolution Fire 2018-2019 
8. Investment Policy Resolution Cable 2018-2019 

 

-56-

ITEM 12.c.



CITY OF COACHELLA 
STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY  

ADOPTED FEBRUARY 22, 2018 
 

 
 

1.0 POLICY: 
 
This statement is intended to provide guidelines for the prudent investment of the City of 
Coachella’s (hereafter called “City”) temporarily idle cash in all funds, and outline the policies 
for maximizing the efficiency of the City’s cash management system.  
 
It is the objective of this investment policy to provide guidelines for: 

• Insuring the safety of funds invested; 
• Meeting the City’s daily cash flow demands; 
• Maximizing investment interest income for the City; 
• Conform with all laws and statutes governing the investment of public funds. 

 
2.0 SCOPE: 
 
The investment policy applies to the temporary idle cash of the City and its component units as 
accounted for in the Audited Annual Financial Report. Policy statements outlined in this 
document focus on the City’s pooled funds. This policy is applicable, but not limited to all funds 
listed below: 

• General Fund 
• Special Revenue Funds 
• Capital Outlay Funds 
• Debt Service Funds 
• Enterprise Funds 
• Trust and Agency Funds 
• Any new fund created by the City Council unless specifically exempted 

 
Exceptions may exist with funds for retiree pension and medical benefits held in a trust and bond 
proceeds held by a trustee or fiscal agent and governed by the instructions in the bond document. 
In addition, if in the opinion of the City Treasurer or their Authorized Designee (Designee), 
matching the segregated investment portfolio of the bond reserve fund with the maturity 
schedule of an individual bond issue is prudent given current economic analysis, the investment 
policy authorizes extending beyond the five year maturity limitation with City Council 
authorization no less than three months prior to the investment as outlined in this document. 
 
3.0 PRUDENCE: 
 
The City Treasurer or Designee are authorized to make investment decisions on behalf of the 
City and considered as trustees and therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investors’ 
standard. When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, and managing 

-57-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 

public funds, the City Treasurer or Designee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence  
under the circumstances then prevailing, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and 
familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct and management of their own affairs.  
 
Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments as part to an overall 
strategy, the City Treasurer or Designee are authorized to acquire approved and suitable 
investments as described in paragraph 8.0 hereof. 
 
The City Treasurer, Authorized Designee and other individuals assigned to manage the 
investment portfolio, acting within the intent and scope of the investment policy and other 
written procedures and exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility and 
liability for an individual security credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from 
expectations are reported in a timely manner and appropriate action is taken to control adverse 
developments. 
 
4.0 OBJECTIVES: 
 
The three fundamental considerations, in order of priority, for managing the City’s investments 
are safety, liquidity, and yield. At no time should safety or liquidity be compromised in exchange 
for higher yields. 
 
Safety of Principal 
 
The preservation of invested capital is the foremost objective of the City and of primary 
importance. The City shall only invest in financial instruments that are considered safe. The 
safety and risk associated with an investment refers to the potential loss of principal, accrued 
interest, or a combination of these amounts. Each investment decision shall seek to ensure that 
capital losses are avoided. To attain this objective, diversification is required in order that 
potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the remainder 
of the portfolio. 
 
Liquidity 
 
The City’s investment portfolio shall contain investments with a diversified mix of maturities in 
order to provide sufficient liquidity to meet projected operating cash requirements of the City. 
 
Return on Investments 
 
The City’s investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a reasonable 
and competitive market rate of return taking into consideration risk constraints, prudent 
investment principles and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. 

-58-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 3 
 

 

5.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY: 
 
The authority to invest or to reinvest funds or to sell or exchange securities so purchased of City 
Funds is vested in the City Council. Government Code Section (“GCS”) 53607 authorizes the 
delegation of the above duties to the City Treasurer for a one-year period. Therefore, the 
authority to invest and reinvest City funds or to sell or exchange the securities so purchased with 
City funds is hereby delegated to the City Treasurer for a one year period unless sooner 
terminated by the City Council. 
 
The City Treasurer or Designee shall prepare written procedures for the operation of the 
investment program consistent with this investment policy. The procedures shall also include 
reference to: safekeeping, wire transfer agreements, banking service contracts and 
collateral/depository agreements. Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority 
to persons responsible for investment transactions. The written procedures may provide for the 
delegation of authority to an Authorized Designee, who upon assuming such position shall 
become responsible for investment transactions. No person may engage in an investment 
decision except as permitted by this policy and by the procedures approved by the City Treasurer 
or Designee.  
 
The City may delegate investment authority to an investment advisor. The advisor will follow 
the Investment Policy and such other written instructions as are provided. 
 
6.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: 
 
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business 
activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could 
impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Employees and investment officials 
are required to annually file all applicable financial disclosures as required by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission (FPPC). 
 
7.0 AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS: 
 
For any investment not purchased directly from the issuer, the City shall transact business only 
with banks, savings and loans, and investment broker/dealers. The broker/dealers should be 
primary dealers regularly reporting to the New York Federal Reserve Bank. The City Treasurer 
or Designee shall select all security dealers and depositories subject to City Council approval and 
the execution of an appropriate written agreement. Investment transactions shall be conducted 
with several competing, reputable security broker/dealers. The selection process shall focus on 
financial viability, knowledge, experience and ethics in the fixed-income security industry. The 
City Treasurer or Designee will maintain a list and a written agreement with financial institutions 
authorized to provide investment services. 

-59-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 4 
 

 

All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become an authorized financial 
institution for investment transactions must supply the City Treasurer or Designee with the 
following: most recent audited financial statements, proof of Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority (FINRA) certification, trading resolution, proof of state registration, completed 
broker/dealer questionnaire, certification of having read the City’s investment policy and 
depository contracts. The City Treasurer or Designee will conduct an annual review of the 
financial condition and registrations of qualified bidders. 
 
The City Treasurer or Designee shall annually send a copy of the current investment policy to all 
broker/dealers approved to do business with the City. Confirmation of receipt of this policy shall 
be considered evidence that the dealer understands the City’s investment policies and intends to 
sell the City only appropriate investments authorized by this investment policy.  
 
If the City has an investment advisor, the investment advisor may use its own list of authorized 
broker/dealers to conduct transactions on behalf of the City. 
 
8.0 AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS: 
 
As provided in GCSs 16429.1, 53601, 53601.1, 53631, 53649 and 53684, the State of California 
limits the investment vehicles available to local agencies as summarized in the following 
paragraphs. Where this Policy specifies a percentage limitation for a particular security type or 
issuer, that percentage is applicable at the time the security is purchased. No more than 5% of the 
City’s portfolio shall be invested in any one issuer regardless of sector except for the U.S. 
Treasury, Federal Agencies, supranationals, and pools (including LAIF, County Pools, LGIPs, 
and money market funds). Credit criteria listed in this section refers to the credit rating at the 
time the security is purchased. If an investment’s credit rating falls below the minimum rating 
required at the time of purchase, the City’s investment advisor (if any) and Treasurer will review 
the rating agency action and decide whether to sell or hold the investment. The City may invest 
funds in the following instruments and subject to the limitations set forth in Section 11.0: 
 
State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF): As authorized in GCS 16429.1 and 
by LAIF procedures, local government agencies are each authorized to invest a maximum of $65 
million in this investment program administered by the California State Treasurer. 
 
U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes: U.S. Treasury bills, notes, bonds or certificates of indebtedness, 
or those for which the full faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of 
principal and interest. 
 
Federal Agencies: Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise 
obligations, participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as 
to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-sponsored enterprises.  

-60-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 5 
 

 

 
State of California Obligations: Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of this 
state, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing property 
owned, controlled, or operated by the state or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the 
state rated in a rating category of "A" long-term or "A-1" short-term or its equivalent or higher 
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization (“NRSRO”).  
 
Obligations of the Other 49 States: Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 
states in addition to California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a 
revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a department, board, 
agency, or authority of any of the other 49 states, in addition to California, rated in a rating 
category of "A" long-term or "A-1" short-term or its equivalent or higher by a NRSRO.  
 
Obligations of Local Agencies in California: Bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidences of 
indebtedness of a local agency within this state, including bonds payable solely out of the 
revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by the local agency, 
or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the local agency rated in a rating category of 
"A" long-term or "A-1" short-term or its equivalent or higher by a NRSRO.  
 
County Pooled Investment Funds: As authorized by GCS 53684, the City may invest in pooled 
investments managed by the County of Riverside. 
 
Bankers’ Acceptances: Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by a commercial 
bank, otherwise known as bankers’ acceptances. Purchases of bankers’ acceptances may not 
exceed 180 days maturity or total more than 40% of the cost value of the City's investment 
portfolio. Eligible bankers’ acceptances must be rated in the highest letter and number rating as 
provided for by a NRSRO. 
 
Commercial Paper: Commercial paper of “prime” quality of the highest ranking or of the 
highest letter and number rating as provided for by a NRSRO. The entity that issues the 
commercial paper shall meet all of the following conditions in either paragraph (1) or paragraph 
(2): 
 

1) The entity meets the following criteria: Is organized and operating in the United States as 
a general corporation. Has total assets in excess of five hundred million dollars 
($500,000,000). Has debt other than commercial paper, if any, that is rated in a rating 
category of “A” or higher, or the equivalent, by a NRSRO. 
 
2) The entity meets the following criteria: Is organized within the United States as a special 
purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company. Has program wide credit 
enhancements including, but not limited to, over collateralization, letters of credit, or surety 

-61-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 6 
 

 

bond. Has commercial paper that is rated “A-1” or higher, or the equivalent, by a NRSRO. 
 
Purchases of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 25% of the market value of the City’s 
portfolio or have a term to maturity which exceeds 270 days. The City may not own more than 
10% of an issuer’s outstanding commercial paper. 
 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit: Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or 
state-chartered bank, a savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 5102 of 
the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federally- or state-licensed branch of 
a foreign bank rated in a rating category of “A” long-term or "A-1" short-term or its equivalent 
or higher by a NRSRO.  No more than 30% of the City’s portfolio may be invested in negotiable 
CDs. 
 
Non-Negotiable Certificates of Deposit: Non-negotiable certificates of deposit from eligible 
depositories are fixed-term investments, There are no portfolio limits on the amount or maturity 
for this investment vehicle. Eligible depositories may be a state or national bank, savings 
association or federal association, a state or federal credit union, or a federally insured industrial 
loan company, which must have received an overall rating of not less than “satisfactory” in its 
most recent evaluation by the appropriate federal financial supervisory agency of its record of 
meeting the credit needs of California’s communities. Deposits in excess of federal deposit limits 
must be collateralized per Section 9.0. 
 
Medium Term Corporate Notes: Medium-term corporate notes, defined as all corporate and 
depository institution debt securities with a maximum remaining maturity of 5 years or less, 
issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States or by depository 
institutions licensed by the United States or any state and operating within the United States. 
Medium-term corporate notes shall be rated in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or better 
by a NRSRO. No more than 30% of the City’s portfolio may be invested in corporate notes. 
 
Demand Deposits: The City Treasurer may establish accounts for deposits in a state or national 
bank, savings association or federal association, a state or federal credit union, or a federally 
insured industrial loan company in the State of California, which must have received an overall 
rating of not less than “satisfactory” in its most recent evaluation by the appropriate federal 
financial supervisory agency of its record of meeting the credit needs of California’s 
communities. Deposits in excess of federal deposit limits must be collateralized per Section 9.0. 
 
Money Market Funds: Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management 
companies that are money market funds registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Sec. 80a-1, et seq.). To be 
eligible for investment pursuant to this subdivision these companies shall either: have an 
investment advisor registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and Exchange 

-62-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 7 
 

 

Commission with not less than 5 years experience managing money market mutual funds and 
with assets under management in excess of $500,000,000, or attain the highest ranking letter or 
numerical rating provided by not less than two of the three largest NRSROs. No more than 20% 
of the City’s portfolio may be invested in money market funds.  
 
Local Government Investment Pools (LGIPs): Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint 
powers authority organized pursuant to Section 6509.7 that invests in the securities and 
obligations authorized in subdivisions (a) to (q), inclusive. Each share shall represent an equal 
proportional interest in the underlying pool of securities owned by the joint powers authority. To 
be eligible under this section, the joint powers authority issuing the shares shall have retained an 
investment adviser that meets all of the following criteria: 

1) The adviser is registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

2) The adviser has not less than five years of experience investing in the securities and 
obligations authorized in subdivisions (a) to (q), inclusive. 

3) The adviser has assets under management in excess of five hundred million dollars 
($500,000,000). 

 
Asset-Backed Security (ABS): Any mortgage pass-through security, collateralized mortgage 
obligation, mortgage-backed or other pay-through bond, equipment lease-back certificate, 
consumer receivable pass-through certificate, or consumer receivable-backed bond of a 
maximum of five years maturity. Eligible securities shall be issued by an issuer rated in a rating 
category of “A” or its equivalent or better for the issuer’s debt as provided by an NRSRO and 
rated in a rating category of “AA” or its equivalent or better by an NRSRO. No more than 20% 
of the City's portfolio may be invested in this type of security. 

 
Supranational: United States dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations 
issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development (IBRD), International Finance Corporation (IFC), or Inter-American Development 
Bank (IADB), with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less, and eligible for 
purchase and sale within the United States. Investments under this subdivision shall be rated in a 
rating category of “AA” or its equivalent or better by a NRSRO. No more than 30% of the City’s 
portfolio may be invested in this security type.  
 
Any other permissible investments outlined within Section 53601 may be purchased from time to 
time. 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, moneys held by a trustee or fiscal agent and pledged 
to the payment or security of bonds or other indebtedness, or obligations under a lease, 

-63-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 8 
 

 

installment sale, or other agreement of the City, or certificates of participation in those bonds, 
indebtedness, or lease installment sale, or other agreements, may be invested in accordance with 
the statutory provision governing the issuance of those bonds, indebtedness, or lease installment 
sale, or other agreement or to the extent not inconsistent therewith or if there are no specific 
statutory provisions, in accordance with the ordinance, resolution, indenture, or agreement of the 
local agency providing for the issuance. This includes investing bond proceeds in guaranteed 
investment contracts with United States financial institutions rated in a rating category of “AA,” 
or equivalent, or better by a NRSRO. 
 
9.0 COLLATERALIZATION: 
 
Collateral is required for investments in Non-Negotiable Certificates of Deposit and Demand 
Deposits. Investments in excess of federal deposit insurance limits must be collateralized at 
105% to 150% depending on the specific security pledged as collateral in accordance with GCS 
53630 et seq. The collateral pool is administered by the State, and is composed of a wide variety 
of government securities, including those indicated above, as well as promissory notes secured 
by first mortgages on improved residential property located in the state and letters of credit 
issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco.  
 
10.0 SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY: 
 
To protect against fraud or embezzlement or losses caused by collapse of an individual securities 
dealer, all deliverable securities owned by the City shall be held in safekeeping by a third party 
bank trust department, acting as agent for the City under the terms of a custody agreement or 
professional services agreement (PSA). All trades executed by a dealer will settle delivery vs. 
payment (DVP) through the City’s safekeeping agent. 
 
Securities held in custody for the City shall be independently audited on an annual basis to verify 
investment holdings. 
 
11.0 DIVERSIFICATION: 
 
It is the City’s policy to minimize portfolio risk by diversifying maturity, sector and class 
allocation. Default risk shall be minimized by investing in an assortment of permitted 
investments as outlined in Section 8.0. To minimize overall portfolio risk, the following not-to-
exceed diversification goals shall guide the City’s operating fund portfolio, based upon the 
portfolio structure at the time of purchase. 
 
Investment Type Not-to-Exceed Limit Other Restrictions 
Local Agency Investment $50 million Established by the State Treasurer 

-64-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 9 
 

 

Investment Type Not-to-Exceed Limit Other Restrictions 
Fund (LAIF) 
U.S. Treasury No Limit None 
Federal Agency No Limit Maximum of 40% per issuer 
State of California Obligations No Limit • No more than 5% per issuer 

• Rated in a rating category of “A” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities in excess of 
one year 

• Rated in a rating category “A-1” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities under one 
year 

Obligations of the Other 49 
States 

No Limit • No more than 5% per issuer 

• Rated in a rating category of “A” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities in excess of 
one year 

• Rated in a rating category of “A-
1” or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities under one 
year 

Obligations of Local Agencies 
in California 

No Limit • No more than 5% per issuer 

• Rated in a rating category of “A” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities in excess of 
one year 

• Rated in a rating category of “A-
1” or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities under one 
year 

County Pool $10 million None 
Bankers’ Acceptances 40% • No more than 5% per issuer 

regardless of security type 

• Maximum maturity of 180 days 

-65-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 10 
 

 

Investment Type Not-to-Exceed Limit Other Restrictions 
• Must be rated in highest category 
by a NRSRO 

Commercial Paper 25% • No more than 5% per issuer 
regardless of security type 

• No more than 10% of an issuer’s 
outstanding commercial paper 

• Maximum maturity of 270 days 

• Must be rated in highest category 
by a NRSRO 

Negotiable CDs 30% • No more than 5% per issuer 
regardless of security type 

• Rated in a rating category of “A” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities in excess of 
one year 

• Rated in a rating category of “A-
1” or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities under one 
year 

Non-Negotiable CDs No Limit • See Section 9.0 for collateral 
requirements 

Medium Term Corporate 
Notes 

30% • No more than 5% per issuer 
regardless of security type 

• Maximum maturity of five years 

• Minimum credit rating of “A” or 
its equivalent by a NRSRO 

Demand Deposits No Limit • See Section 9.0 for collateral 
requirements 

Money Market Funds 20% • See Section 8.0 for advisor 
requirements or the Fund must 
have the highest rating by two 
NRSRO 

-66-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 11 
 

 

Investment Type Not-to-Exceed Limit Other Restrictions 
Local Government Investment 
Pools (LGIPs) 

No Limit • See Section 8.0 for advisor 
requirements 

Asset-Backed Securities 
(ABS) 

20% • No more than 5% per issuer 

• Rated in a rating category of “AA” 
(Issue) and “A” (Issuer) or its 
equivalent or higher by a NRSRO 

Supranational 30% • Rated in a rating category of “AA” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO 

 
 
12.0 MAXIMUM MATURITIES: 
 
The average dollar weighted maturity of a portfolio may not exceed 3 years. No investment shall 
be made in an investment authorized by this Policy (and that GCS 53601 does not specific a 
maximum maturity) that has a term remaining to maturity in excess of 5 years from date of 
purchase without approval of the City Council no less than three months prior to any such 
transactions. Maturities shall be staggered to minimize liquidity risk and to enhance the stability 
of incoming cash flows. At least 10% of the portfolio shall be invested in instruments, which can 
be liquidated on one day’s notice. 
 
Reserve funds may be invested in securities exceeding 5 years if the maturities of such 
investments are made to coincide as nearly as possible with the expected use of the funds. 
 
13.0 INTERNAL CONTROL: 
 
The City Treasurer or Designee shall establish an annual process of independent review by an 
external auditor. This review will provide internal control by assuring compliance with policies 
and procedures. The compliance of the total Fund to all applicable federal, state and local 
regulations and requirements is the responsibility of the City Treasurer and/or the Director of 
Finance.  
 
14.0 INTEREST EARNINGS 
 
All moneys earned and collected from investments authorized in this policy shall be allocated 
monthly to various fund accounts based on the cash balance in each fund as a percentage of the 
entire pooled portfolio. Interest earnings on bond proceeds, bond reserves or other restricted 

-67-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 12 
 

 

investments held by trustees shall be allocated directly to the appropriate fund and not be part of 
the pooled allocation. 
 
15.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
 
The City’s policy is to achieve a market rate of return on public funds while minimizing risks 
and preserving capital. In evaluating the performance of the City’s portfolio in complying with 
this policy, the City shall establish an appropriate performance benchmark and compare the total 
return of its portfolio to the total return of the benchmark. 
 
16.0 REPORTING: 
 
The City Treasurer or Designee shall provide to the City Council a monthly investment report,  
which provides a clear picture of the status of the current investment portfolio. Based on GCS 
53646, the report shall include, at a minimum, the following information for each type of 
investment held in the City’s investment portfolio: the issuer, date of purchase, date of maturity, 
amount of investment, current market value, yield on investment, income generated from 
investments, dollar amount invested on all securities, investments and moneys held by the local 
agency, and shall additionally include a description of any of the local agency’s funds, 
investments, or programs, and a description of unusual investment activity or developments 
during the month for which the report is prepared. Based on GCS 53607, the report shall also 
include a listing of investment transactions. With respect to all securities held by the local 
agency, and under management of any outside party that is not also a local agency or the State of 
California Local Agency Investment Fund, the report shall also include a current market value as 
of the date of the report and shall include the source of this same valuation.  
 
The report shall state compliance of the portfolio to the statement of investment policy, or 
manner in which the portfolio is not in compliance and include a statement denoting the ability 
of the City to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months, or provide an 
explanation as to why sufficient money shall, or may, not be available. 
 
The City Treasurer or Designee may supply to the City Council the most recent statement or 
statements received by the local agency from the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), County 
Investment Pools, or Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured accounts in a bank or 
savings and loan association. 
 
The City Treasurer or Designee shall prepare and deliver such a report each month to the Mayor 
and each City Council member no later than 30 days after the close of the month for which each 
report is prepared. 
 
In the event that an investment advisor is retained by the City, the investment advisor shall 

-68-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 13 
 

 

prepare and deliver a report for each month’s investment activity as required herein to the City in 
such time as to allow compliance with the delivery times for each report required by this policy. 
 
The City Council may relieve the City Treasurer of his or her duties under this policy in the 
event of any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of this policy. 
 
17.0 INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION: 
 
The City’s investment policy shall be adopted annually by the City Council. The policy shall be  
reviewed annually by the City Treasurer and/or Designee with any and all modifications made 
thereto approved by the City Council at a public meeting.  

-69-

ITEM 12.c.



 



CITY OF COACHELLA 
STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY 

ADOPTED FEBRUARY 22, 2018 
 
 
 

1.0 POLICY: 
 
This statement is intended to provide guidelines for the prudent investment of the City of 
Coachella’s (hereafter called “City”) temporarily idle cash in all funds, and outline the policies 
for maximizing the efficiency of the City’s cash management system. 

 
It is the objective of this investment policy to provide guidelines for: 

• Insuring the safety of funds invested; 
• Meeting the City’s daily cash flow demands; 
• Maximizing investment interest income for the City; 
• Conform with all laws and statutes governing the investment of public funds. 

 
2.0 SCOPE: 

 
The investment policy applies to the temporary idle cash of the City and its component units as 
accounted for in the Audited Annual Financial Report. Policy statements outlined in this 
document focus on the City’s pooled funds. This policy is applicable, but not limited to all funds 
listed below: 

• General Fund 
• Special Revenue Funds 
• Capital Outlay Funds 
• Debt Service Funds 
• Enterprise Funds 
• Trust and Agency Funds 
• Any new fund created by the City Council unless specifically exempted 

 
Exceptions may exist with funds for retiree pension and medical benefits held in a trust and bond 
proceeds held by a trustee or fiscal agent and governed by the instructions in the bond document. 
In addition, if in the opinion of the City Treasurer or their Authorized Designee (Designee), 
matching the segregated investment portfolio of the bond reserve fund with the maturity 
schedule of an individual bond issue is prudent given current economic analysis, the investment 
policy authorizes extending beyond the five year maturity limitation with City Council 
authorization no less than three months prior to the investment as outlined in this document. 

 
3.0 PRUDENCE: 

 
The City Treasurer or Designee are authorized to make investment decisions on behalf of the 
City and considered as trustees and therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investors’ 
standard. When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, and managing 

-71-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 2 

 

 

public funds, the City Treasurer or Designee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence 
under the circumstances then prevailing, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and 
familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct and management of their own affairs. 

 
Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments as part to an overall 
strategy, the City Treasurer or Designee are authorized to acquire approved and suitable 
investments as described in paragraph 8.0 hereof. 

 
The City Treasurer, Authorized Designee and other individuals assigned to manage the 
investment portfolio, acting within the intent and scope of the investment policy and other 
written procedures and exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility and 
liability for an individual security credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from 
expectations are reported in a timely manner and appropriate action is taken to control adverse 
developments. 

 
4.0 OBJECTIVES: 

 
The three fundamental considerations, in order of priority, for managing the City’s investments 
are safety, liquidity, and yield. At no time should safety or liquidity be compromised in exchange 
for higher yields. 

 
Safety of Principal 

 
The preservation of invested capital is the foremost objective of the City and of primary 
importance. The City shall only invest in financial instruments that are considered safe. The 
safety and risk associated with an investment refers to the potential loss of principal, accrued 
interest, or a combination of these amounts. Each investment decision shall seek to ensure that 
capital losses are avoided. To attain this objective, diversification is required in order that 
potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the remainder 
of the portfolio. 

 
Liquidity 

 
The City’s investment portfolio shall contain investments with a diversified mix of maturities in 
order to provide sufficient liquidity to meet projected operating cash requirements of the City. 

 
Return on Investments 

 
The City’s investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a reasonable 
and competitive market rate of return taking into consideration risk constraints, prudent 
investment principles and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. 

-72-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 3 

 

 

5.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY: 
 
The authority to invest or to reinvest funds or to sell or exchange securities so purchased of City 
Funds is vested in the City Council. Government Code Section (“GCS”) 53607 authorizes the 
delegation of the above duties to the City Treasurer for a one-year period. Therefore, the 
authority to invest and reinvest City funds or to sell or exchange the securities so purchased with 
City funds is hereby delegated to the City Treasurer for a one year period unless sooner 
terminated by the City Council. 

 
The City Treasurer or Designee shall prepare written procedures for the operation of the 
investment program consistent with this investment policy. The procedures shall also include 
reference to: safekeeping, wire transfer agreements, banking service contracts and 
collateral/depository agreements. Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority 
to persons responsible for investment transactions. The written procedures may provide for the 
delegation of authority to an Authorized Designee, who upon assuming such position shall 
become responsible for investment transactions. No person may engage in an investment 
decision except as permitted by this policy and by the procedures approved by the City Treasurer 
or Designee. 

 
The City may delegate investment authority to an investment advisor. The advisor will follow 
the Investment Policy and such other written instructions as are provided. 

 
6.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: 

 
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business 
activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could 
impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Employees and investment officials 
are required to annually file all applicable financial disclosures as required by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission (FPPC). 

 
7.0 AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS: 

 
For any investment not purchased directly from the issuer, the City shall transact business only 
with banks, savings and loans, and investment broker/dealers. The broker/dealers should be 
primary dealers regularly reporting to the New York Federal Reserve Bank. The City Treasurer 
or Designee shall select all security dealers and depositories subject to City Council approval and 
the execution of an appropriate written agreement. Investment transactions shall be conducted 
with several competing, reputable security broker/dealers. The selection process shall focus on 
financial viability, knowledge, experience and ethics in the fixed-income security industry. The 
City Treasurer or Designee will maintain a list and a written agreement with financial institutions 
authorized to provide investment services. 

-73-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 4 

 

 

All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become an authorized financial 
institution for investment transactions must supply the City Treasurer or Designee with the 
following: most recent audited financial statements, proof of Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority (FINRA) certification, trading resolution, proof of state registration, completed 
broker/dealer questionnaire, certification of having read the City’s investment policy and 
depository contracts. The City Treasurer or Designee will conduct an annual review of the 
financial condition and registrations of qualified bidders. 

 
The City Treasurer or Designee shall annually send a copy of the current investment policy to all 
broker/dealers approved to do business with the City. Confirmation of receipt of this policy shall 
be considered evidence that the dealer understands the City’s investment policies and intends to 
sell the City only appropriate investments authorized by this investment policy. 

 
If the City has an investment advisor, the investment advisor may use its own list of authorized 
broker/dealers to conduct transactions on behalf of the City. 

 
8.0 AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS: 

 
As provided in GCSs 16429.1, 53601, 53601.1, 53631, 53649 and 53684, the State of California 
limits the investment vehicles available to local agencies as summarized in the following 
paragraphs. Where this Policy specifies a percentage limitation for a particular security type or 
issuer, that percentage is applicable at the time the security is purchased. No more than 5% of the 
City’s portfolio shall be invested in any one issuer regardless of sector except for the U.S. 
Treasury, Federal Agencies, supranationals, and pools (including LAIF, County Pools, LGIPs, 
and money market funds). Credit criteria listed in this section refers to the credit rating at the 
time the security is purchased. If an investment’s credit rating falls below the minimum rating 
required at the time of purchase, the City’s investment advisor (if any) and Treasurer will review 
the rating agency action and decide whether to sell or hold the investment. The City may invest 
funds in the following instruments and subject to the limitations set forth in Section 11.0: 

 
State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF): As authorized in GCS 16429.1 and 
by LAIF procedures, local government agencies are each authorized to invest a maximum of $65 
million in this investment program administered by the California State Treasurer. 

 
U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes: U.S. Treasury bills, notes, bonds or certificates of indebtedness, 
or those for which the full faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of 
principal and interest. 

 
Federal Agencies: Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise 
obligations, participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as 
to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-sponsored enterprises. 

-74-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 5 

 

 
 

State of California Obligations: Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of this 
state, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing property 
owned, controlled, or operated by the state or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the 
state rated in a rating category of "A" long-term or "A-1" short-term or its equivalent or higher 
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization (“NRSRO”). 

 
Obligations of the Other 49 States: Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 
states in addition to California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a 
revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a department, board, 
agency, or authority of any of the other 49 states, in addition to California, rated in a rating 
category of "A" long-term or "A-1" short-term or its equivalent or higher by a NRSRO. 

 
Obligations of Local Agencies in California: Bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidences of 
indebtedness of a local agency within this state, including bonds payable solely out of the 
revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by the local agency, 
or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the local agency rated in a rating category of 
"A" long-term or "A-1" short-term or its equivalent or higher by a NRSRO. 

 
County Pooled Investment Funds: As authorized by GCS 53684, the City may invest in pooled 
investments managed by the County of Riverside. 

 
Bankers’ Acceptances: Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by a commercial 
bank, otherwise known as bankers’ acceptances. Purchases of bankers’ acceptances may not 
exceed 180 days maturity or total more than 40% of the cost value of the City's investment 
portfolio. Eligible bankers’ acceptances must be rated in the highest letter and number rating as 
provided for by a NRSRO. 

 
Commercial Paper: Commercial paper of “prime” quality of the highest ranking or of the 
highest letter and number rating as provided for by a NRSRO. The entity that issues the 
commercial paper shall meet all of the following conditions in either paragraph (1) or paragraph 
(2): 

 
1) The entity meets the following criteria: Is organized and operating in the United States as 
a general corporation. Has total assets in excess of five hundred million dollars 
($500,000,000). Has debt other than commercial paper, if any, that is rated in a rating 
category of “A” or higher, or the equivalent, by a NRSRO. 

 
2) The entity meets the following criteria: Is organized within the United States as a special 
purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company. Has program wide credit 
enhancements including, but not limited to, over collateralization, letters of credit, or surety 

-75-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 6 

 

 

bond. Has commercial paper that is rated “A-1” or higher, or the equivalent, by a NRSRO. 
 
Purchases of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 25% of the market value of the City’s 
portfolio or have a term to maturity which exceeds 270 days. The City may not own more than 
10% of an issuer’s outstanding commercial paper. 

 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit: Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or 
state-chartered bank, a savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 5102 of 
the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federally- or state-licensed branch of 
a foreign bank rated in a rating category of “A” long-term or "A-1" short-term or its equivalent 
or higher by a NRSRO. No more than 30% of the City’s portfolio may be invested in negotiable 
CDs. 

 
Non-Negotiable Certificates of Deposit: Non-negotiable certificates of deposit from eligible 
depositories are fixed-term investments, There are no portfolio limits on the amount or maturity 
for this investment vehicle. Eligible depositories may be a state or national bank, savings 
association or federal association, a state or federal credit union, or a federally insured industrial 
loan company, which must have received an overall rating of not less than “satisfactory” in its 
most recent evaluation by the appropriate federal financial supervisory agency of its record of 
meeting the credit needs of California’s communities. Deposits in excess of federal deposit limits 
must be collateralized per Section 9.0. 

 
Medium Term Corporate Notes: Medium-term corporate notes, defined as all corporate and 
depository institution debt securities with a maximum remaining maturity of 5 years or less, 
issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States or by depository 
institutions licensed by the United States or any state and operating within the United States. 
Medium-term corporate notes shall be rated in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or better 
by a NRSRO. No more than 30% of the City’s portfolio may be invested in corporate notes. 

 
Demand Deposits: The City Treasurer may establish accounts for deposits in a state or national 
bank, savings association or federal association, a state or federal credit union, or a federally 
insured industrial loan company in the State of California, which must have received an overall 
rating of not less than “satisfactory” in its most recent evaluation by the appropriate federal 
financial supervisory agency of its record of meeting the credit needs of California’s 
communities. Deposits in excess of federal deposit limits must be collateralized per Section 9.0. 

 
Money Market Funds: Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management 
companies that are money market funds registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Sec. 80a-1, et seq.). To be 
eligible for investment pursuant to this subdivision these companies shall either: have an 
investment advisor registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and Exchange 

-76-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 7 

 

 

Commission with not less than 5 years experience managing money market mutual funds and 
with assets under management in excess of $500,000,000, or attain the highest ranking letter or 
numerical rating provided by not less than two of the three largest NRSROs. No more than 20% 
of the City’s portfolio may be invested in money market funds. 

 
Local Government Investment Pools (LGIPs): Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint 
powers authority organized pursuant to Section 6509.7 that invests in the securities and 
obligations authorized in subdivisions (a) to (q), inclusive. Each share shall represent an equal 
proportional interest in the underlying pool of securities owned by the joint powers authority. To 
be eligible under this section, the joint powers authority issuing the shares shall have retained an 
investment adviser that meets all of the following criteria: 

1) The adviser is registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

2) The adviser has not less than five years of experience investing in the securities and 
obligations authorized in subdivisions (a) to (q), inclusive. 

3) The adviser has assets under management in excess of five hundred million dollars 
($500,000,000). 

 
Asset-Backed Security (ABS): Any mortgage pass-through security, collateralized mortgage 
obligation, mortgage-backed or other pay-through bond, equipment lease-back certificate, 
consumer receivable pass-through certificate, or consumer receivable-backed bond of a 
maximum remaining maturity of five years. Eligible securities shall be rated in a rating 
category of “AA” or its equivalent or better by an NRSRO. No more than 20% of the City's 
portfolio may be invested in this type of security. 

 
Supranational: United States dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations 
issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development (IBRD), International Finance Corporation (IFC), or Inter-American Development 
Bank (IADB), with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less, and eligible for 
purchase and sale within the United States. Investments under this subdivision shall be rated in a 
rating category of “AA” or its equivalent or better by a NRSRO. No more than 30% of the City’s 
portfolio may be invested in this security type. 

 
Any other permissible investments outlined within Section 53601 may be purchased from time to 
time. 

 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, moneys held by a trustee or fiscal agent and pledged 
to the payment or security of bonds or other indebtedness, or obligations under a lease, 

-77-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 8 

 

 

installment sale, or other agreement of the City, or certificates of participation in those bonds, 
indebtedness, or lease installment sale, or other agreements, may be invested in accordance with 
the statutory provision governing the issuance of those bonds, indebtedness, or lease installment 
sale, or other agreement or to the extent not inconsistent therewith or if there are no specific 
statutory provisions, in accordance with the ordinance, resolution, indenture, or agreement of the 
local agency providing for the issuance. This includes investing bond proceeds in guaranteed 
investment contracts with United States financial institutions rated in a rating category of “AA,” 
or equivalent, or better by a NRSRO. 

 
9.0 COLLATERALIZATION: 

 
Collateral is required for investments in Non-Negotiable Certificates of Deposit and Demand 
Deposits. Investments in excess of federal deposit insurance limits must be collateralized at 
105% to 150% depending on the specific security pledged as collateral in accordance with GCS 
53630 et seq. The collateral pool is administered by the State, and is composed of a wide variety 
of government securities, including those indicated above, as well as promissory notes secured 
by first mortgages on improved residential property located in the state and letters of credit 
issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco. 

 
10.0 SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY: 

 
To protect against fraud or embezzlement or losses caused by collapse of an individual securities 
dealer, all deliverable securities owned by the City shall be held in safekeeping by a third party 
bank trust department, acting as agent for the City under the terms of a custody agreement or 
professional services agreement (PSA). All trades executed by a dealer will settle delivery vs. 
payment (DVP) through the City’s safekeeping agent. 

 
Securities held in custody for the City shall be independently audited on an annual basis to verify 
investment holdings. 

 
11.0 DIVERSIFICATION: 

 
It is the City’s policy to minimize portfolio risk by diversifying maturity, sector and class 
allocation. Default risk shall be minimized by investing in an assortment of permitted 
investments as outlined in Section 8.0. To minimize overall portfolio risk, the following not-to- 
exceed diversification goals shall guide the City’s operating fund portfolio, based upon the 
portfolio structure at the time of purchase. 

 
Investment Type Not-to-Exceed Limit Other Restrictions 
Local Agency Investment $50 million Established by the State Treasurer 

-78-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 9 

 

 
Investment Type Not-to-Exceed Limit Other Restrictions 
Fund (LAIF)   
U.S. Treasury No Limit None 
Federal Agency No Limit Maximum of 40% per issuer 
State of California Obligations No Limit • No more than 5% per issuer 

• Rated in a rating category of “A” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities in excess of 
one year 

• Rated in a rating category “A-1” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities under one 
year 

Obligations of the Other 49 
States 

No Limit • No more than 5% per issuer 

• Rated in a rating category of “A” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities in excess of 
one year 

• Rated in a rating category of “A- 
1” or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities under one 
year 

Obligations of Local Agencies 
in California 

No Limit • No more than 5% per issuer 

• Rated in a rating category of “A” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities in excess of 
one year 

• Rated in a rating category of “A- 
1” or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities under one 
year 

County Pool $10 million None 
Bankers’ Acceptances 40% • No more than 5% per issuer 

regardless of security type 

• Maximum maturity of 180 days 

-79-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 10 

 

 
Investment Type Not-to-Exceed Limit Other Restrictions 

  • Must be rated in highest category 
by a NRSRO 

Commercial Paper 25% • No more than 5% per issuer 
regardless of security type 

• No more than 10% of an issuer’s 
outstanding commercial paper 

• Maximum maturity of 270 days 

• Must be rated in highest category 
by a NRSRO 

Negotiable CDs 30% • No more than 5% per issuer 
regardless of security type 

• Rated in a rating category of “A” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities in excess of 
one year 

• Rated in a rating category of “A- 
1” or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO for maturities under one 
year 

Non-Negotiable CDs No Limit • See Section 9.0 for collateral 
requirements 

Medium Term Corporate 
Notes 

30% • No more than 5% per issuer 
regardless of security type 

• Maximum maturity of five years 

• Minimum credit rating of “A” or 
its equivalent by a NRSRO 

Demand Deposits No Limit • See Section 9.0 for collateral 
requirements 

Money Market Funds 20% • See Section 8.0 for advisor 
requirements or the Fund must 
have the highest rating by two 
NRSRO 

-80-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 11 

 

 
Investment Type Not-to-Exceed Limit Other Restrictions 
Local Government Investment 
Pools (LGIPs) 

No Limit • See Section 8.0 for advisor 
requirements 

Asset-Backed Securities 
(ABS) 

20% • No more than 5% per issuer 

• Rated in a rating category of “AA” 
(Issue) or its equivalent or higher 
by a NRSRO 

Supranational 30% • Rated in a rating category of “AA” 
or its equivalent or higher by a 
NRSRO 

 
 

12.0 MAXIMUM MATURITIES: 
 

The average dollar weighted maturity of a portfolio may not exceed 3 years. No investment shall 
be made in an investment authorized by this Policy (and that GCS 53601 does not specific a 
maximum maturity) that has a term remaining to maturity in excess of 5 years from date of 
purchase without approval of the City Council no less than three months prior to any such 
transactions. Maturities shall be staggered to minimize liquidity risk and to enhance the stability 
of incoming cash flows. At least 10% of the portfolio shall be invested in instruments, which can 
be liquidated on one day’s notice. 

 
Reserve funds may be invested in securities exceeding 5 years if the maturities of such 
investments are made to coincide as nearly as possible with the expected use of the funds. 

 
13.0 INTERNAL CONTROL: 

 
The City Treasurer or Designee shall establish an annual process of independent review by an 
external auditor. This review will provide internal control by assuring compliance with policies 
and procedures. The compliance of the total Fund to all applicable federal, state and local 
regulations and requirements is the responsibility of the City Treasurer and/or the Director of 
Finance. 

 
14.0 INTEREST EARNINGS 

 
All moneys earned and collected from investments authorized in this policy shall be allocated 
monthly to various fund accounts based on the cash balance in each fund as a percentage of the 
entire pooled portfolio. Interest earnings on bond proceeds, bond reserves or other restricted 

-81-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 12 

 

 

investments held by trustees shall be allocated directly to the appropriate fund and not be part of 
the pooled allocation. 
 
15.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
 
The City’s policy is to achieve a market rate of return on public funds while minimizing risks 
and preserving capital. In evaluating the performance of the City’s portfolio in complying with 
this policy, the City shall establish an appropriate performance benchmark and compare the total 
return of its portfolio to the total return of the benchmark. 
 
16.0 REPORTING: 
 
The City Treasurer or Designee shall provide to the City Council a monthly investment report, 
which provides a clear picture of the status of the current investment portfolio. Based on GCS 
53646, the report shall include, at a minimum, the following information for each type of 
investment held in the City’s investment portfolio: the issuer, date of purchase, date of maturity, 
amount of investment, current market value, yield on investment, income generated from 
investments, dollar amount invested on all securities, investments and moneys held by the local 
agency, and shall additionally include a description of any of the local agency’s funds, 
investments, or programs, and a description of unusual investment activity or developments 
during the month for which the report is prepared. Based on GCS 53607, the report shall also 
include a listing of investment transactions. With respect to all securities held by the local 
agency, and under management of any outside party that is not also a local agency or the State of 
California Local Agency Investment Fund, the report shall also include a current market value as 
of the date of the report and shall include the source of this same valuation. 
 
The report shall state compliance of the portfolio to the statement of investment policy, or 
manner in which the portfolio is not in compliance and include a statement denoting the ability 
of the City to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months, or provide an 
explanation as to why sufficient money shall, or may, not be available. 
 
The City Treasurer or Designee may supply to the City Council the most recent statement or 
statements received by the local agency from the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), County 
Investment Pools, or Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured accounts in a bank or 
savings and loan association. 
 
The City Treasurer or Designee shall prepare and deliver such a report each month to the Mayor 
and each City Council member no later than 30 days after the close of the month for which each 
report is prepared. 
 
In the event that an investment advisor is retained by the City, the investment advisor shall 

-82-

ITEM 12.c.



City of Coachella 
Statement of Investment Policy 
February 10, 2018 
Page 13 

 

 

prepare and deliver a report for each month’s investment activity as required herein to the City in 
such time as to allow compliance with the delivery times for each report required by this policy. 

 
The City Council may relieve the City Treasurer of his or her duties under this policy in the 
event of any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of this policy. 

 
17.0 INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION: 

 
The City’s investment policy shall be adopted annually by the City Council. The policy shall be 
reviewed annually by the City Treasurer and/or Designee with any and all modifications made 
thereto approved by the City Council at a public meeting. 

-83-

ITEM 12.c.



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 2, 2019 

 

 
 
 
Memorandum 
 
To: Javier Estrada, Controller 

City of Coachella 

From: Sarah Meacham, Managing Director 
 Richard Babbe, CCM, Senior Managing Consultant 
 PFM Asset Management LLC 

Re: Annual Review of Investment Policy 
 

We completed our annual review of the City’s Investment Policy (the “Policy”). As written, the Policy is 
comprehensive and in compliance with the sections of the California Government Code (the “Code”) that 
govern the investment of public funds. We do, however, recommend that the City make several changes 
to the Policy to incorporate a recent update to the Code .The recommended changes do not reflect any 
revisions to the intent of the current Policy. This memorandum explains our recommended Policy 
revisions. We have also attached a marked-up version of the Policy to illustrate our recommendations. 
 
Recommendations 

Section 8.0: Asset-Backed Security (ABS) 

There was one update to the Code effective January 1, 2019 that we wanted to bring to your attention. 
AB 1770 clarified the Code’s requirements for the purchase of asset-backed securities in two respects: 1) 
the bill revised the wording of this section’s maturity limit to require that securities have a maximum 
remaining maturity of 5 years or less rather than a maximum maturity of five years. This change simply 
brings the maximum maturity description in line with how maturity limits are generally worded in the Code, 
but it doesn’t change the effective maturity limit for this security type. 2) The bill eliminated the 
requirement that the issuer of the securities be rated “A” or its equivalent as provided by an NRSRO. We 
believe the removal of the issuer rating criteria makes sense, since this requirement generally has no 
relevance to the issuers of ABS, which are organized as trusts and typically do not have standalone 
issuer ratings. The minimum “AA” issue rating remains, which is an important risk management criteria. 
These changes are mainly technical in nature and do not change the particular securities that can be 
purchased by the City.  Accordingly, we recommend the City revise the Policy’s description of Asset- 
Backed Securities in Section 8.0 and the Diversification table in Section 11.0 to reflect this Code update. 

. 

We would be happy to discuss any questions regarding our recommended changes to the Policy. 

-85-

ITEM 12.c.



 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA TO AMEND AND REESTABLISH THE 
INVESTMENT POLICY ORIGINALLY ADOPTED JULY 9, 2003 AND 
AMENDED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 

 
WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53601 of the State of California authorizes the 

legal bodies of local agencies to invest surplus money which is not required for the immediate 
necessities of the local agencies in accordance with the rules set forth in the section; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53607 authorizes the local legislative body to 
delegate to the Treasurer of the local agency, the authority to invest or reinvest funds of the local 
agency, or to sell or exchange securities so purchased; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires that once the Treasurer of the local agency is 
delegated that authority, he thereafter assumes full responsibility for such transactions until such 
time as the delegated authority is revoked; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires the Treasurer of the local Agency to make a 
monthly report of such transactions to the legislative body; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires an annual ratification of the delegation of 
authority of the legislative body to the Treasurer; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53646 (2) requires that the Treasurer shall 
annually render to the City Council and any oversight committee a Statement of Investment 
Policy and any change in the policy, which the City Council shall consider at a public meeting; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Coachella to have any surplus or idle 
City funds invested so as to provide additional income to the City of Coachella. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA 
HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1 - That the City Treasurer, or her authorized designee(s), of the City of 
Coachella is hereby delegated the authority to invest or reinvest surplus funds of the City of 
Coachella, or to sell, or exchange securities so purchased. 
 

SECTION 2 - The City Treasurer, or her authorized designee(s), will assume full 
responsibility for such transactions until such time as the aforementioned delegated authority is 
revoked, and that the City Treasurer will make a monthly report of such transactions to the City 
Council of the City of Coachella, 
 

SECTION  3  -  The  City  Treasurer  shall  render  to  the  City  Council  a  Statement of 

-87-

ITEM 12.c.



Resolution No. 2019-17  

Investment Policy in the first quarter of each calendar year. Any changes to said policy shall be 
considered by the City Council at such a public regular meeting. 
 

SECTION 4 - The Statement of Investment Policy, attached hereto and incorporated 
herewith, is adopted as the Statement of Investment Policy of the City of Coachella. 
 

SECTION 5 - The City Treasurer shall comply with the Statement of Investment Policy 
of the City of Coachella adopted by this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 6 - The City Treasurer shall report to the City Council, the City Manager and 
the City’s Auditor as required by the Statement of Investment Policy and all applicable laws. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 

Steven A. Hernandez 
Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

Angela M. Zepeda 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

Carlos Campos 
City Attorney 

-88-

ITEM 12.c.



Resolution No. 2019-17  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 
CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 
) ss. 
) 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-17 was duly adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 10th day of 
April, 2019 by the following vote of Council: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

-89-

ITEM 12.c.



 



Resolution No. WA-2019-01 

RESOLUTION NO. WA-2019-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA TO 
AMEND AND REESTABLISH THE INVESTMENT POLICY 
ORIGINALLY ADOPTED JULY 9, 2003 AND AMENDED BY THE 
AUTHORITY BOARD FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Coachella Water Authority (hereafter 

“BOARD” and “AUTHORITY” respectively) wants to be in compliance with State law; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53601 of the State of California authorizes the 
legal bodies of local agencies to invest surplus money which is not required for the immediate 
necessities of the local agencies in accordance with the rules set forth in the section; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53607 authorizes the local legislative body to 
delegate to the Treasurer of the local agency, the authority to invest or reinvest funds of the local 
agency, or to sell or exchange securities so purchased; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires that once the Treasurer of the local agency is 
delegated that authority, he thereafter assumes full responsibility for such transactions until such 
time as the delegated authority is revoked; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires the Treasurer of the local Agency to make a 
monthly report of such transactions to the legislative body; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires an annual ratification of the delegation of 
authority of the legislative body to the Treasurer; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53646 (2) requires that the Treasurer shall 
annually render to the BOARD and any oversight committee a Statement of Investment Policy 
and any change in the policy, which the BOARD shall consider at a public meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the AUTHORITY to have any surplus or idle 
AUTHORITY funds invested so as to provide additional income to the AUTHORITY. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COACHELLA 
WATER AUTHORITY HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1 - That the AUTHORITY Treasurer, or her authorized designee(s), is hereby 
delegated the authority to invest or reinvest surplus funds of the AUTHORITY, or to sell, or 
exchange securities so purchased. 
 

SECTION 2 - The AUTHORITY Treasurer, or her authorized designee(s), will assume 
full responsibility for such transactions until such time as the aforementioned delegated authority 
is revoked, and that the AUTHORITY Treasurer will make a monthly report of such transactions 

 
-91-

ITEM 12.c.



Resolution No. WA-2019-01 

to the BOARD of the AUTHORITY, 
 

SECTION 3 - The AUTHORITY Treasurer shall render to the BOARD a Statement of 
Investment Policy in the first quarter of each calendar year. Any changes to said policy shall be 
considered by the BOARD at such a regular public meeting. 
 

SECTION 4 - The Statement of Investment Policy, attached hereto and incorporated 
herewith, is adopted as the Statement of Investment Policy of the AUTHORITY. 
 

SECTION 5 - The AUTHORITY Treasurer shall comply with the Statement of 
Investment Policy of the AUTHORITY adopted by this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 6 - The AUTHORITY Treasurer shall report to the BOARD, the Executive 
Director and the AUTHORITY’S Auditor as required by the Statement of Investment Policy and 
all applicable laws. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 

Steven A. Hernandez 
President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

Angela M. Zepeda 
Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

Carlos Campos 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-92-

ITEM 12.c.



Resolution No. WA-2019-01 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 
CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 
) ss. 
) 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. WA-2019-01 was duly 
adopted by the Board of the Authority of the Coachella Water Authority at a regular meeting 
thereof, held on the 10th day of April, 2019 by the following vote of the Authority: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

-93-

ITEM 12.c.



 



RESOLUTION NO. SD-2019-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COACHELLA 
SANITARY DISTRICT, COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA TO AMEND AND 
REESTABLISH THE INVESTMENT POLICY ORIGINALLY ADOPTED 
JULY 9, 2003 AND AMENDED BY THE AUTHORITY BOARD FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2018-2019 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Coachella Sanitary District (hereafter “BOARD” 

and “DISTRICT” respectively) want to comply with State law; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53601 of the State of California authorizes the legal 
bodies of local agencies to invest surplus money which is not required for the immediate necessities 
of the local agencies in accordance with the rules set forth in the section; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53607 authorizes the local legislative body to 
delegate to the Treasurer of the local agency, the authority to invest or reinvest funds of the local 
agency, or to sell or exchange securities so purchased; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires that once the Treasurer of the local agency is 
delegated that authority, he thereafter assumes full responsibility for such transactions until such 
time as the delegated authority is revoked; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires the Treasurer of the local Agency to make a 
monthly report of such transactions to the legislative body; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires an annual ratification of the delegation of authority 
of the legislative body to the Treasurer; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53646 (2) requires that the Treasurer shall annually 
render to the BOARD and any oversight committee a Statement of Investment Policy and any 
change in the policy, which the BOARD shall consider at a public meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the DISTRICT to have any surplus or idle DISTRICT 
funds invested so as to provide additional income to the DISTRICT. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COACHELLA 
SANITARY DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1 - That the DISTRICT Treasurer, or her authorized designee(s), is hereby 
delegated the authority to invest or reinvest surplus funds of the DISTRICT, or to sell, or exchange 
securities so purchased. 
 

SECTION 2 - The DISTRICT Treasurer, or her authorized designee(s), will assume full 
responsibility for such transactions until such time as the aforementioned delegated authority is 
revoked, and that the DISTRICT Treasurer will make a monthly report of such transactions to 

-95-

ITEM 12.c.



Resolution No. SD-2019-01 

the BOARD of the DISTRICT. 
 

SECTION 3 - The DISTRICT Treasurer shall render to the BOARD a Statement of 
Investment Policy in the first quarter of each calendar year. Any changes to said policy shall be 
considered by the BOARD at such a regular public meeting. 
 

SECTION 4 - The Statement of Investment Policy, attached hereto and incorporated 
herewith, is adopted as the Statement of Investment Policy of the DISTRICT. 
 

SECTION 5 - The DISTRICT Treasurer shall comply with the Statement of Investment 
Policy of the DISTRICT adopted by this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 6 - The DISTRICT Treasurer shall report to the BOARD, the DISTRICT 
Manager and the DISTRICT’S Auditor as required by the Statement of Investment Policy and all 
applicable laws. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 

Steven A. Hernandez 
President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

Angela M. Zepeda 
Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

Carlos Campos 
City Attorney 

-96-

ITEM 12.c.



Resolution No. SD-2019-01 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 
CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 
) ss. 
) 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. SD-2019-01 was duly adopted by 
the Board of Directors of the Coachella Sanitary District at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 
10th day of April, 2019 by the following vote of the Board: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

-97-

ITEM 12.c.



 



Resolution No. FD-2019-01 

RESOLUTION NO. FD-2019-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA, 
CALIFORNIA TO AMEND AND REESTABLISH THE INVESTMENT 
POLICY ORIGINALLY ADOPTED JULY 9, 2003 AND AMENDED BY 
THE DISTRICT BOARD FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Coachella Fire Protection District (hereafter 

“BOARD” and “DISTRICT” respectively) wants to be in compliance with State law; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53601 of the State of California authorizes the 
legal bodies of local agencies to invest surplus money which is not required for the immediate 
necessities of the local agencies in accordance with the rules set forth in the section; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53607 authorizes the local legislative body to 
delegate to the Treasurer of the local agency, the authority to invest or reinvest funds of the local 
agency, or to sell or exchange securities so purchased; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires that once the Treasurer of the local agency is 
delegated that authority, he thereafter assumes full responsibility for such transactions until such 
time as the delegated authority is revoked; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires the Treasurer of the local Agency to make a 
monthly report of such transactions to the legislative body; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires an annual ratification of the delegation of 
authority of the legislative body to the Treasurer; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53646 (2) requires that the Treasurer shall 
annually render to the BOARD and any oversight committee a Statement of Investment Policy 
and any change in the policy, which the BOARD shall consider at a public meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the DISTRICT to have any surplus or idle 
DISTRICT   funds invested so as to provide additional income to the DISTRICT. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COACHELLA 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1 - That the DISTRICT Treasurer, or her authorized designee(s), is hereby 
delegated the authority to invest or reinvest surplus funds of the DISTRICT, or to sell, or 
exchange securities so purchased. 
 

SECTION 2 - The DISTRICT Treasurer, or her authorized designee(s), will assume full 
responsibility for such transactions until such time as the aforementioned delegated authority is 
revoked, and that the DISTRICT Treasurer will make a monthly report of such transactions to 

 
-99-

ITEM 12.c.



Resolution No. FD-2019-01 

the BOARD of the DISTRICT, 
 

SECTION 3 - The DISTRICT Treasurer shall render to the BOARD a Statement of 
Investment Policy in the first quarter of each calendar year. Any changes to said policy shall be 
considered by the BOARD at such a regular public meeting. 
 

SECTION 4 - The Statement of Investment Policy, attached hereto and incorporated 
herewith, is adopted as the Statement of Investment Policy of the DISTRICT. 
 

SECTION 5 - The DISTRICT Treasurer shall comply with the Statement of Investment 
Policy of the DISTRICT adopted by this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 6 - The DISTRICT Treasurer shall report to the BOARD, the DISTRICT 
Manager and the DISTRICT’S Auditor as required by the Statement of Investment Policy and all 
applicable laws. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 
Steven A. Hernandez 
Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Angela M. Zepeda 
Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

Carlos Campos 
City Attorney 

-100-

ITEM 12.c.



Resolution No. FD-2019-01 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 
CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 
) ss. 
) 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. FD-2019-01 was duly adopted 
by the Board of Directors of the Coachella Fire Protection District at a regular meeting thereof, 
held on the 10th day of April, 2019 by the following vote of the Board: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

 
 
 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

-101-

ITEM 12.c.



 



RESOLUTION NO. CBL-2019-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS 
CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION, COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA TO 
AMEND AND REESTABLISH THE INVESTMENT POLICY 
ORIGINALLY ADOPTED JULY 9, 2003 AND AMENDED BY THE 
CORPORATION BOARD FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019. 

 
WHEREAS, The Coachella Educational and Governmental Access Cable Channel 

Corporation (hereafter “CORPORATION”) wants to be in compliance with State law; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53601 of the State of California authorizes the 
legal bodies of local agencies to invest surplus money which is not required for the immediate 
necessities of the local agencies in accordance with the rules set forth in the section; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53607 authorizes the local legislative body to 
delegate to the Treasurer of the local agency, the authority to invest or reinvest funds of the local 
agency, or to sell or exchange securities so purchased; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires that once the Treasurer of the local agency is 
delegated that authority, he thereafter assumes full responsibility for such transactions until such 
time as the delegated authority is revoked; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires the Treasurer of the local Agency to make a 
monthly report of such transactions to the legislative body; and 
 

WHEREAS, said Section 53607 requires an annual ratification of the delegation of 
authority of the legislative body to the Treasurer; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53646 (2) requires that the Treasurer shall 
annually render to the CORPORATION and any oversight committee, a Statement of Investment 
Policy and any change in the policy, which the CORPORATION shall consider at a public 
meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Coachella Educational and Governmental 
Access Cable Channel Corporation to have any surplus or idle CORPORATION funds invested 
so as to provide additional income to the CORPORATION. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND 
GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION HEREBY 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1 - That the CORPORATION Treasurer, or her authorized designee(s), is 
hereby delegated the authority to invest or reinvest surplus funds of the CORPORATION, or to 
sell, or exchange securities so purchased. 

-103-

ITEM 12.c.



Resolution No. CBL-2019-01 

SECTION 2 - The CORPORATION Treasurer, or her authorized designee(s), will 
assume full responsibility for such transactions until such time as the aforementioned delegated 
authority is revoked, and that the CORPORATION Treasurer will make a monthly report of such 
transactions to the Coachella Educational and Governmental Access Cable Channel Corporation 
 

SECTION 3 - The CORPORATION Treasurer shall render to the CORPORATION a 
Statement of Investment Policy in the first quarter of each calendar year. Any changes to said 
policy shall be considered by the CORPORATION at such a public meeting. 
 

SECTION 4 - The Statement of Investment Policy, attached hereto and incorporated 
herewith, is adopted as the Statement of Investment Policy of the Coachella Educational and 
Governmental Access Cable Channel Corporation. 
 

SECTION 5 - The CORPORATION Treasurer shall comply with the Statement of 
Investment Policy of the CORPORATION adopted by this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 6 - The CORPORATION Treasurer shall report to the CORPORATION, the 
CORPORATION Manager and the CORPORATION’S Auditor as required by the Statement of 
Investment Policy and all applicable laws. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 
Steven A. Hernandez 
Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Angela M. Zepeda 
Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

Carlos Campos 
City Attorney 

-104-

ITEM 12.c.



Resolution No. CBL-2019-01 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 
CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 
) ss. 
) 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. CBL-2019-01 was duly 
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Coachella Education and Government Access Cable 
Channel Corporation at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 10th day of April, 2019 by the 
following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

 
 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

-105-

ITEM 12.c.



 



 

ITEM  12.d.



 



 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Jonathan Hoy P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer  
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2019-23, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of 

Coachella, California, Approving Final Parcel Map No. 37083  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution No. 2019-23, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella, 
California, Approving Final Parcel Map No. 37083 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 
David Hacker prepared Parcel Map No. 37083 in accordance with the approved Tentative Map. 
Parcel Map 37083 will subdivide approximately 18.5 acres into two parcels consisting of 7.15 
acres for Parcel No. 1, and 11.36 acres for Parcel No. 2. Final Parcel Map 37083 is needed for 
financing purposes and there will be no grading or development, other than clearing and 
grubbing of the site. Tentative Parcel Map No. 37083 is in compliance with the conditions of 
approval as described in Resolution No. 2018-30 and is in accordance with the Subdivision Map 
Act of the State of California. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council Approve the Final Parcel Map 37083. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The approval of this Parcel Map will have no fiscal impact to the City of Coachella. 
 

 

STAFF REPORT 
4/10/2019 

 

-109-

ITEM 12.d.



 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-23 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FINAL PARCEL MAP NO. 
37083 

 
 WHEREAS, David Hacker, prepared Parcel Map No. 37083, subdividing a portion of 
those certain lands; and  
 
 WHEREAS, as a requirement of the Subdivision Map Act of the State of California, as it 
existed at the time of the approval of Tentative Parcel Map No. 37083, that map complied with 
said requirements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Coachella deems it is in the best interest of 
the citizens of the City of Coachella, California, that this division of land is consistent with the 
goals and policies of the General Plan. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this City Council does hereby approve 
said Final Parcel Map No. 37083. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10th day of April 2019. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Steven A. Hernandez  
Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Angela M. Zepeda 
City Clerk 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Carlos Campos 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

-111-

ITEM 12.d.



Resolution No. 2019-23 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 
CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 
) ss. 
) 

 
 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-23 was duly adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 10th day of 
April, 2019 by the following vote of Council: 
 
AYES:    
   
NOES:    
   
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Andrea J. Carranza, MMC  
Deputy City Clerk 
 

-112-

ITEM 12.d.



TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Juan Carrillo, Associate Planner  
 
SUBJECT: Tentative Parcel Map No. 37083 is a request to allow the subdivision of an 

existing 18.51-acre vacant site into two parcels for future development located on 
the northeast corner of the alignment of Tyler Street and Vista Del Norte.  (APN 
601-620-014). (Applicant: Coachella Vineyard Luxury RV Park, LLC).  

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt Resolution No. PC2017-15 
recommending to the City Council approval of Tentative Parcel Map 37083 to subdivide 18.51 
gross acres into two parcels consisting of 7.15 acres for Parcel No. 1, and 11.36 acres for Parcel 
No. 2.  
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
The applicant, Coachella Vineyard Luxury RV Park, LLC, is requesting to subdivide an 
existing 18.51-acre parcel located on the northeast corner of the alignment of Tyler Street and 
Vista Del Norte into two parcels consisting of 7.15 acres for Parcel No. 1, and 11.36 acres for 
Parcel No. 2.  The affected property is located in the C-T PD (Commercial Tourist Planned 
Development) Zone and is further identified by Assessor’s Parcel Number 601-620-014. The 
subject site is one of two remainder parcels from Tract Map No. 32860-1 which is the 
underlying subdivision map for the single-family attached residential dwelling units 
immediately adjacent to the east of the subject parcel.  The residential dwelling units are known 
by as The Villas at The Vineyards. Tentative Parcel Map No. 37083 is needed for financing 
purposes and there is not grading or development, other than clearing and grubbing of the site, 
as part of this application.  
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 
Environmental Setting: 
 
The subject site is an 18.51 acre vacant parcel and it is located within the C-T PUD (Commercial 
Tourist Planned Unit Development) zone. Surrounding land uses and zoning classifications 
include the following: 
 

 

STAFF REPORT 
10/4/2017 

 

-113-

ITEM 12.d.



North:  Vacant commercial land / C-T PUD (Commercial Tourist Planned Unit 
Development zone) 

South:  Vacant commercial land across Vista Del Norte / C-G (General Commercial) 
East: Existing single family residential, The Vineyards / C-T PUD (Commercial Tourist 

Planned Unit Development zone) 
West:  Existing agricultural use / C-T / (Tourist Commercial). 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 
 
The City of Coachella has determined that the proposed project is exempt from environmental 
review under Section 15315 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.  
This exemption applies to projects involving minor land divisions of four or fewer parcels, where 
the project is consistent with the General Plan and zoning regulations, and the slope is less than 
20 percent, and no prior land divisions occurred within the past 24 months.  The project satisfies 
the above criteria and as such, no environmental review is required. 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH THE GENERAL PLAN 
 
The project site has a land use designation of General Neighborhood according to the Land Use 
Element of the General Plan 2035 which allows medium density residential. This District 
accommodates a variety of housing types and is consistent with the City’s vision for this planned 
development which historically has included RV subdivisions, and clustered housing projects. 
General Neighborhoods are intended to create walkable amenities such as parks, and services in 
close proximity to most residences.   
 
The subject site is located within subarea 12 of the General Plan. Subarea 12 includes policy 
guidance that allows for a final designation mix that is composed of up to 10% Neighborhood 
Center, 40% Suburban Retail District, 25% Regional Retail District, and 25% Resort 
development in addition to the single family residential uses. Therefore, the project will able to 
use these “floater” designations to accommodate the build-out of future gated communities on 
the project site.  The commercial hotel and related uses are further accommodated by the 
Regional Retail opportunities within Sub-Area #12. 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH ZONING 
 
The subject site is in the C-T PUD (Commercial Tourist Planned Unit Development) zone, and 
the proposed parcel map is consistent with this designation, including minimum lot size, widths, 
depths, and sizes. Any future proposed development will be reviewed by Staff and presented to 
the Planning Commission for their review and approval with subsequent City Council review if 
required by the zoning code. 
 
Minimum development standards for the C-T PUD zone are as follows: 
 

• Minimum Lot Size. Ten thousand (10,000) square feet. 
• Minimum Lot Width. None. 
• Minimum Lot Depth. None. 

-114-

ITEM 12.d.



• Maximum Lot Coverage. None. 
 
The proposed lot size and configuration of the tentative parcel map meets these minimum 
development standards.   
 
DESIGN CHARACTERISTICS 
 
General Considerations:  
 
Proposed Tentative Parcel Map 37083 involves the subdivision of an approximately 18.51-acre 
commercial undeveloped land on the northeast corner of the alignment of Tyler Street and Vista 
Del Norte into two parcels. The proposed subdivision consisting of 7.15 acres for Parcel No. 1, 
and 11.36 acres for Parcel No. 2.   All future development would be subject to approval by the 
Planning Commission through the Architectural Review process.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. PC-2017-15 recommending approval of Tentative Parcel Map 
37083 to the City Council, subject to the findings and conditions of the staff report. 

2. Continue Tentative Parcel Map 37083 and provide staff and the applicant with direction. 
3. Deny Tentative Parcel Map 37083 with findings. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE(S): 
 
Staff recommends alternative #1 or #2.  
 
Findings 
 

1. The proposed tentative map is consistent with the General Plan and the City of Coachella 
Official Zoning Map. The proposed subdivision is within a land use designation of 
General Neighborhood according to the General Plan 2035 Land Use Element which 
allows medium density residential. The subdivision is consistent with the development 
intensity permitted by the General Neighborhood Land Use category.  Tentative Parcel 
Map 37083 is in compliance with the standards of the Zoning Ordinance with respect to 
the C-T PUD (Commercial Tourist Planned Unit Development) including minimum lot 
size, minimum lot depth, and minimum lot width. Additionally, This District 
accommodates a variety of housing types and is consistent with the City’s vision for this 
planned development which historically has included RV subdivisions, and clustered 
housing projects. General Neighborhoods are intended to create walkable amenities such 
as parks, and services in close proximity to most residences. 

 
2. The site is physically suitable for the future commercial development and density. The 

proposed subdivision will provide adequate sized lots for future commercial 
development. All proposed lots will have adequate dimensions, and ingress and egress to 
accommodate future development. Furthermore, The subject site is located within 

-115-

ITEM 12.d.



subarea 12 of the General Plan. Subarea 12 includes policy guidance that allows for a 
final designation mix that is composed of up to 10% Neighborhood Center, 40% 
Suburban Retail District, 25% Regional Retail District, and 25% Resort development in 
addition to the single family residential uses. Therefore, the project will able to use these 
“floater” designations to accommodate the build-out of future gated communities on the 
project site.  The commercial hotel and related uses are further accommodated by the 
Regional Retail opportunities within Sub-Area #12. 

 
3. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements are not likely to cause 

substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife 
or their habitat. There are no sensitive habitats or bodies of water in the immediate 
vicinity of the site.  For future development proposed on the site, all drainage from 
increased impervious material on the site will be contained on site for a 100-year storm 
event, as required by City regulations. As such there would be no impact to the 
Coachella Valley Whitewater Channel.  

 
4. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements are not likely to cause any 

serious public health problems. The proposed subdivision would allow for future 
development of commercial uses intended and identified in the Genera Plan and the 
zoning code.  All future development would be reviewed for compliance with 
applicable California Building Code regulations prior to issuance of any building 
permits.  

 
5. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not conflict with 

easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property within 
the proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision would create two lots for future 
commercial development with adequate street frontage, access, and utility connections 
to all properties.  There are no known easements that would conflict with the proposed 
subdivision.   
 

6. The City of Coachella has determined that the proposed project is exempt from 
environmental review under Section 15315 of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines.  This exemption applies to projects involving minor land divisions 
of four or fewer parcels, where the project is consistent with the General Plan and zoning 
regulations, and the slope is less than 20 percent, and no prior land divisions occurred 
within the past 24 months.  The project satisfies the above criteria and as such, no 
environmental review is required. 

 
Conditions: 
 

1. Tentative Parcel Map No. 37083 is approved for 24 months from the final date of City 
Council approval unless a one year time extension is requested by the applicant and 
approved by the Planning Commission.  Exhibit 1 is approved herein by reference. 

 
2. The applicant or successor in interest shall annex the subject property into the City's 

Community Facilities District (CFD 2005-1) for City police, fire and paramedic 

-116-

ITEM 12.d.



services, prior to recordation of Tentative Parcel Map 37083 and prior to the issuance of 
any building permits for construction of off-site improvements or residential buildings.  

 
3. The subdivider or successor in interest shall install “purple pipe” for a future tertiary 

water distribution system that would serve the irrigation needs of all common areas of 
the subdivision including perimeter landscaping, entry features and median island 
planters, and retention basins, subject to review and approval by the City Engineer.  The 
“purple pipe” water lines shall be installed along the street frontages according to City 
standards.  

 
4. Prior to recordation of the final map, the subdivider or successor in interest shall pay the  

City of Coachella a Supplemental Water Supply Charge fee, based on the signed 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Coachella and CVWD, to 
ensure sufficient water supplies for the new lots created as part of Tentative Parcel Map 
No. 37083. The amount paid for supplemental water supplies shall be based on 
CVWD’s Supplemental Water Supply Charge for similar development types and water 
requirements in effect at the time paid.  Alternatively, this condition of approval may be 
deemed satisfied, if approved by the City, by collection of the SWSC through an 
approved phasing plan that is comparable to CVWD fee-collection policies in effect at 
that time consistent with the MOU between CVWD and the City of Coachella. 

 
Final Map 
 

5. The Final Map shall comply with the Subdivision Map Act and City of Coachella 
Subdivision Ordinance. 

6. All public streets shall be dedicated to City of Coachella. 

7. Prior to submittal of the final map to the City Council for approval, the applicant shall 
post securities (Bonds) to guarantee the installation of required improvements and a 
Subdivision Improvement Agreement shall be submitted to Engineering Division for City 
Engineer and City Attorney approval. 

8. Prior to approval of the Final Map, the applicant shall resolve CVWD issues related to  
existing tile drains or irrigation mains located within the tract boundary or along the 
streets adjacent to the tract.   If necessary, tile drains and irrigation lines shall be relocated 
and easement documents prepared for the new location of any such lines.  The easement 
shall be shown on the final map.  Plans for the tile drain or irrigation relocation shall be 
submitted to CVWD for approval and a copy of the plans shall be submitted to the City 
for evaluation regarding possible conflict with City facilities.  The applicant shall submit 
to the City approved copies of any such relocation plans. 

Grading and Drainage 
 

9. A preliminary geological and soils engineering investigation shall be conducted by a 
registered soils engineer, and a report submitted for review with the precise grading plan 
and shall include pavement recommendations.  The report recommendations shall be 

-117-

ITEM 12.d.



incorporated into the precise grading plan design prior to plan approval.  The soils 
engineer and/or the engineering geologist shall certify to the adequacy of the grading 
plan. 

10. A precise grading/improvement plan, prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer, 
shall be submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer prior to issuance of any 
permits.  A final soils report, compaction report and rough grading certificate shall be 
submitted and approved prior to issuance of any building permits. 

11. Civil plans shall include all utilities easements inside or around the property and location 
of services within the easements. 

12. A Drainage Report, prepared by California Registered Civil Engineer, shall be submitted 
for review and approval by the City Engineer prior to issuance of any permits.  The report 
shall contain a Hydrology Map showing on-site and off-site tributary drainage areas and 
shall be prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Riverside County Flood 
Control District.  Adequate provisions shall be made to accept and conduct the existing 
tributary drainage flows around or through the site in a manner which will not adversely 
affect adjacent or downstream properties. If the design of the project includes a retention 
basin, it shall be sized to contain the runoff resulting from a 10-year storm event and the 
runoff from a 100-year storm event shall be contained within basin with shallow ponding 
(3.5' max.).  The basin shall be designed to evacuate a 10-year storm event within 72 
hours.  The size of the retention basin(s) shall be determined by the hydrology report and 
be approved by the City Engineer.  Retention basin shall be provided with a minimum of 
2.00 feet sandy soil if determined to contain silt or clay materials.  Maximum allowable 
percolation rate for design shall be 10 gal./s.f./day unless otherwise approved by the City 
Engineer.  A percolation test for this site is required to be submitted.  A combination 
drywell vertical drain field shall be constructed at all points where runoff enters the 
retention basin.  Drywell & vertical drain field design shall be based on soils borings 
made at the proposed drywell locations after the retention basins have been rough graded.  
Minimum depth shall be 45-feet.  A log that includes sieve analysis for each strata of the 
borings shall be submitted to the City Engineer for confirmation of depth of the vertical 
drain fields.  Underground retention under the proposed parking area will be considered 
as an alternative to surface retention subject to the approval of the City Engineer. 

13. Site access improvements shall be in conformance with the requirements of Title 24 of 
the California Administrative Code.  This shall include access ramps for off-site and on-
site streets as required. 

14. Applicant shall obtain approval of site access and circulation from Fire Marshall. 

15. If applicant is planning to build a wall, separate permits shall be required for wall 
construction. The maximum height of any wall shall be limited to six (6) feet as measured 
from an average of the ground elevations on either side. 

Street Improvements 

-118-

ITEM 12.d.



16. Street improvement plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall be 
submitted for engineering plan check prior to issuance of encroachment permits.  All 
street improvements including street lights shall be designed and constructed in 
conformance with City Standards and Specifications.  Street flow line grade shall have a 
minimum slope of 0.35 %.  

17. Applicant shall construct all off-site and on-site improvements including street pavement, 
curb, gutter, sidewalk, street trees, perimeter walls, perimeter landscaping and irrigation, 
storm drain, street lights, and any other incidental works necessary to complete the 
improvements.  Driveways shall conform to City of Coachella standards for commercial 
driveways with a minimum width of 24.00 feet and curbed radius entrances. 

18. Dedication of land along Vista Del Norte Street is required for right-of-way purposes, 
including construction of half of width improvements. This street is classified as a 
Collector with Bike Lanes with 90 feet of right-of-way as per the City of Coachella 
General Plan. 

19. Dedication of land along Tyler Street is required for right-of-way purposes, including 
construction of half of width improvements and one lane to the west as minimum. Street 
improvements shall reflect continuation of future street to the north of Tyler Street. 
Interim turnaround on Tyler Street requires approval by the City Engineer while street 
improvements are complete for the length of the street. This street is classified as a 
Collector with Bike Lanes with 90 feet of right-of-way as per City of Coachella General 
Plan. 

20. Underground of utility power lines is required along vista Del Norte prior to construction 
of offsite improvements. The applicant shall contact utility company, IID, during the 
process of this condition. 

21. Applicant shall contact utility company CVWD for potential abandonment of irrigation 
lines if required. The applicant shall submit to the City a letter from CVWD if there is 
any issue on this matter. 

22. Applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit for any improvements constructed within 
public right-of-way including alleys. 

 
Sewer, Water and Storm Drain Improvements 
 

23. Sewer & Water Improvement Plans prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer 
shall be submitted for engineering plan check and City Engineer approval. 

24. Applicant shall construct all off-site along Tyler Street and on-site water improvements 
and any other incidental works necessary to complete the improvements for water and 
sewer services.  Size and location of sewer and water improvements shall be approved by 
the City Engineer. 

General 

-119-

ITEM 12.d.



25. Prior to issuance of any encroachment permits by the City of Coachella, the applicant 
shall resolve CVWD issues related to  existing tile drains or irrigation mains located 
within the project boundary or along the streets adjacent to the property.  If necessary tile 
drains and irrigation lines shall be relocated and easement documents prepared for the 
new location of any such lines.  Plans for the tile drain or irrigation relocation shall be 
submitted to CVWD for approval and a copy of the plans shall be submitted to the City 
for evaluation regarding possible conflict with City facilities.  The applicant shall submit 
to the City approved copies of any such relocation plans. 

26. The developer shall submit a Fugitive Dust Control and Erosion Control plan in 
accordance with Guidelines set forth by CMC and SCAQMD to maintain wind and 
drainage erosion and dust control for all areas disturbed by grading.  Exact method(s) of 
such control shall be subject to review and approval by the City Engineer.  No sediment 
is to leave the site.  Additional securities, in bond form, in amount of $2,000.00 per acre 
of gross area, and a one-time cash deposit of $2,000.00 are required to insure compliance 
with this requirement.  No work may be started on or off site unless the PM-10 plan has 
been approved, the original plans, and executed dust control agreement, are filed in the 
engineering department at the City of Coachella. 

27. The applicant shall pay all necessary plan check, permit and inspection fees.  Fees will be 
determined when plans are submitted to the City Engineering Department for plan check. 

28. Applicant shall comply with the valley wide NPDES permit requirements including but 
not limited to submittal of a Preliminary WQMP for plan review accompanied by a 
$3,000 plan check deposit and a Final WQMP for final approval including executed 
maintenance agreement. All unused plan check fees will be refunded to the applicant 
upon approval of the Final WQMP. 

Completion 

29. "As-built" plans shall be submitted to and approved by the City Engineer prior to 
acceptance of the improvements by the City.  All off-site and on-site improvements shall 
be completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer prior to acceptance of improvements 
for maintenance by the City. 

Prior to issuance to of certificate of occupancy, all public improvements, including landscaping 
and lighting of the retention basins, and landscaped areas along the exterior streets, shall be 
completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
 
Attachments:  Tentative Parcel Map No. 37083 
  Resolution No. PC2017-15 
         

-120-

ITEM 12.d.



   
E
xh

ib
it 
1 
   
 T
en
ta
tiv

e 
Pa
rc
el
 M

ap
 3
70
83

-121-

ITEM 12.d.



 
 

 

-122-

ITEM 12.d.



PARCEL MAP 37083

PLAN CHECK NO. 4     NRO ENGINEERING
10/5/18                           J.N. 138.292

-123-

IT
E

M
 12.d.



 



PARCEL MAP 37083

-125-

IT
E

M
 12.d.



 



 

ITEM  12.e.



 



 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Jonathan Hoy, P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer  
 
SUBJECT: Maintenance of Effort Certification Statements Fiscal Year 2019/2020, the Local 

Streets and Roads Revenue Projections, as well as the Projected Five Year 
Measure A Capital Improvement Plans Budget for Measure A Funding   

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Maintenance of Effort Certification Statements Fiscal 
Year 2019/2020, the Local Streets and Roads Revenue Projections, as well as the Projected Five 
Year Measure A Capital Improvement Plans Budget for Measure A Funding  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The requirements for receipt of Measure A Local Street and Roads funding are to submit a Five-
Year Capital Improvement Projects Plan (CIP), a signature on the Maintenance of Effort 
Certification, and a Project Status Report for the prior fiscal year funding. 
 
The Five Year CIP plan is a list of proposed uses for Measure A Local Streets and Roads funding 
and must be based upon the revenue projections provided from Riverside County Transportation 
Commission. The projects include the description of the anticipated project, the funding sources 
of the project, and expenditures that will be anticipated from year to year. 
 
The Measure A Ordinance requires annual certification that discretionary General Fund 
expenditures for transportation related construction and maintenance activities for Fiscal Year 
2018/2019 will meet or exceed the Maintenance of Effort Certification Base Year requirement. 
This certification process is one part of the regulations to receive Measure A funding. 
 
The Riverside County Transportation Commission must also receive a Project Status Report for 
the prior fiscal year. The purpose of this report is to document the progress to date on 
engineering, right-of-way acquisition, and the construction that Measure A is funding as well as 
the completion date or anticipated completion date. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the FY 2019/2020 Maintenance of Effort Certification 
Statement, the Local Streets and Roads Revenue Projections, as well as the Projected Five Year 
Measure A Capital Improvement Plans Budget for Measure A will benefit the City of Coachella 
to receive Measure A funding.  

 

STAFF REPORT 
4/10/2019 

 

-129-

ITEM 12.e.



 



-131-

ITEM 12.e.



 



-133-

ITEM 12.e.



 



-135-

ITEM 12.e.



-136-

ITEM 12.e.



-137-

ITEM 12.e.



-138-

ITEM 12.e.



-139-

ITEM 12.e.



-140-

ITEM 12.e.



-141-

ITEM 12.e.



-142-

ITEM 12.e.



-143-

ITEM 12.e.



-144-

ITEM 12.e.



MEASURE A 
LOCAL STREETS 

AND ROADS PROGRAM

Project Status Report FY18-19
Page 1 of 7

Agency:  City of Coachella
Prepared by:  Jonathan Hoy P.E., City Assistant Manager / City Engineer
Phone #:  760-398-5744
Date:  3-26-19

Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Total Cost

Anticipated 
Measure A Funds 

Expended (Est 
thru 6/30/2019)

Estimated/ 
Actual 

Completion Status

2019-01 ST-100 Caltrans ATP 2

14 Locations, Bike 
Lanes, Crosswalks, 
Pathways for 
Pedestrians, 
Sidewalks, and 
Asphalt Work.

 $         2,731,000  $                           - FY 19/20
Project was moved 
to FY 19/20 for 
completion

2019-02 ST-77 Street Resurfacing, Phase 14

The project will 
improve street 
surface, full width of 
the roadway and the 
installation of 
handicap ramps as 
required. The street 
pavements are 
identified from the 
Pavement 
Management 
Update.

2,000,498            1,300,498               FY 18/19 Project is Complete

PROJECT STATUS REPORT FY 2018/19

-145-

IT
E

M
 12.e.



MEASURE A 
LOCAL STREETS 

AND ROADS PROGRAM

Project Status Report FY18-19
Page 2 of 7

TOTAL 4,731,498$         1,300,498$            

-146-

IT
E

M
 12.e.



MEASURE A 
LOCAL STREETS 

AND ROADS PROGRAM

FY 2019-20
Page 3 of 7

Agency:  City    

Prepared by:  Jonathan Hoy P.E., City Assistant Manager / City Engineer

Phone #:  760-398-5744
Date:  3-26-19

FY 2017/18 Audited Measure A Balance: 1,423,600$        

FY 2018/19 (Revised) Measure A Revenue: 640,000             

FY 2018/19 Project Status Report expenses: 1,300,498          

Estimated Prior Year Measure A Balance: 763,102             

Estimated FY 2019/20 Measure A Allocation: 628,000             

Estimated Measure A Available for FY 2019/20 Projects: 1,391,102$        

Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Total Project 
Cost

Measure A 
Funds 

2019/20

2020-01 ST-100 Caltrans ATP 2

14 Locations, Bike 
Lanes, Crosswalks, 
Pathways for 
Pedestrians, 
Sidewalks, and 
Asphalt Work.

2,731,000$          531,000$           

2020-02 ST-88 Street Resurfacing, Phase 15

The project will 
improve street 
surface, full width of 
the roadway and the 
installation of 
handicap ramps as 
required. The street 
pavements are 
identified from the 
Pavement 
Management 
Update.

102,000               102,000             

2020-03 ST-116 Ave 52 & Ave 54 Road 
Reconstruction

Avenue 52 and 
Avenue 54 Street 
Reconstruction. The 
existing pavement 
requires 
reconstruction from 
Harrison Street to 
Grapefruit Blvd. 

1,300,000            526,000             

2020-04 ST-119 La Ponderosa
The project will 
improve street 
surface

600,000               200,000             

TOTAL 4,733,000$         1,359,000$       

FY 2019/20

-147-

ITEM 12.e.



MEASURE A 
LOCAL STREETS 

AND ROADS PROGRAM

FY 2020-21
Page 4 of 7

Agency:  City    

Prepared by:  Jonathan Hoy P.E., City Assistant Manager / City Engineer

Phone #:  760-398-5744
Date:  3-26-19

Estimated Prior Year Measure A Balance: 32,102$             

Estimated FY 2020/21 Measure A Allocation: 644,000             

Estimated Measure A Available for FY 2020/21 Projects: 676,102$           

Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Total Project 
Cost

Measure A 
Funds 

2020/21

2021-01 ST-104 Street Pavement 
Rehabilitation Phase 16

The project will 
improve street 
surface, full width of 
the roadway and the 
installation of 
handicap ramps as 
required. The street 
pavements are 
identified from the 
Pavement 
Management 
Update.

118,000$             118,000$           

2021-02 ST-116 Ave 52 & Ave 54 Road 
Reconstruction

Avenue 52 and 
Avenue 54 Street 
Reconstruction. The 
existing pavement 
requires 
reconstruction from 
Harrison Street to 
Grapefruit Blvd. 

1,300,000            526,000             

TOTAL 1,418,000$         644,000$           

FY 2020/21

-148-

ITEM 12.e.



MEASURE A 
LOCAL STREETS 

AND ROADS PROGRAM

FY 2021-22
Page 5 of 7

Agency:  City    

Prepared by:  Jonathan Hoy P.E., City Assistant Manager / City Engineer

Phone #:  760-398-5744
Date:  3-26-19

Estimated Prior Year Measure A Balance: 32,102$             

Estimated FY 2021/22 Measure A Allocation: 660,000             

Estimated Measure A Available for FY 2021/22 Projects: 692,102$           

Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Total Project 
Cost

Measure A 
Funds 

2021/22

2022-01 ST-105 Street Pavement 
Rehabilitation Phase 17

The project will 
improve street 
surface, full width of 
the roadway and the 
installation of 
handicap ramps as 
required. The street 
pavements are 
identified from the 
Pavement 
Management 
Update.

660,000$             660,000$           

TOTAL 660,000$            660,000$           

FY 2021/22

-149-

ITEM 12.e.



MEASURE A 
LOCAL STREETS 

AND ROADS PROGRAM

FY 2022-23
Page 6 of 7

Agency:  City    

Prepared by:  Jonathan Hoy P.E., City Assistant Manager / City Engineer

Phone #:  760-398-5744
Date:  3-26-19

Estimated Prior Year Measure A Balance: 32,102$             

Estimated FY 2022/23 Measure A Allocation: 677,000             

Estimated Measure A Available for FY 2022/23 Projects: 709,102$           

Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Total Project 
Cost

Measure A 
Funds 

2022/23

2023-01 ST-113 Street Pavement 
Rehabilitation Phase 18

The project will 
improve street 
surface, full width of 
the roadway and the 
installation of 
handicap ramps as 
required. The street 
pavements are 
identified from the 
Pavement 
Management 
Update.

677,000$             677,000$           

TOTAL 677,000$            677,000$           

FY 2022/23

-150-

ITEM 12.e.



MEASURE A 
LOCAL STREETS 

AND ROADS PROGRAM

FY 2023-24
Page 7 of 7

Agency:  City    

Prepared by:  Jonathan Hoy P.E., City Assistant Manager / City Engineer

Phone #:  760-398-5744
Date:  3-26-19

Estimated Prior Year Measure A Balance: 32,102$             

Estimated FY 2023/24 Measure A Allocation: 694,000             

Estimated Measure A Available for FY 2023/24 Projects: 726,102$           

Item No. Project Name / Limits Project Type Total Project 
Cost

Measure A 
Funds 

2023/24

2024-01 ST-118 Street Pavement 
Rehabilitation Phase 19

The project will 
improve street 
surface, full width of 
the roadway and the 
installation of 
handicap ramps as 
required. The street 
pavements are 
identified from the 
Pavement 
Management 
Update.

694,000$             694,000$           

TOTAL 694,000$            694,000$           

FY 2023/24

-151-

ITEM 12.e.



 



W:\pubwks\CIP\MEASURE A\FY Measure A 2019-20\CIP 5 Year Measure A FY19-20 thru FY23-24.xlsx

Total Project 
Cost

Estimated 
Expenditures 

for FY

TU
M

F 
M

ea
su

re
 A

ST-100 CalTrans ATP 2 2,731,000$      2,591,469$     531,000$      
ST-88 Street Pavement Rehabilitation Phase 15 102,000$         102,000$        102,000$      
ST-116 Ave 52 & Ave 54 Road Reconstruction 1,300,000$      526,000$        526,000$      
ST-119 La Ponderosa 600,000$         600,000$        200,000$      

Sub-totals 4,733,000$      3,819,469$     1,359,000$   

ST-104 Street Pavement Rehabilitation Phase 16 118,000$         118,000$        118,000$      

ST-116 Ave 52 & Ave 54 Road Reconstruction 1,300,000$      526,000$        526,000$      

Sub-totals 1,418,000$      644,000$        644,000$      

ST-105 Street Resurfacing, Phase 17 660,000$         660,000$        660,000$      

Sub-totals 660,000$         660,000$        660,000$      

ST-113 Street Resurfacing, Phase 18 677,000$         677,000$        677,000$      

Sub-totals 677,000$         677,000$        677,000$      

ST-118 Street Resurfacing, Phase 19 694,000$         694,000$        694,000$      

Sub-totals 694,000$         694,000$        694,000$      

ST-113 Street Resurfacing, Phase 18 668,000$         668,000$        668,000$      

Sub-totals 668,000$         668,000$        668,000$      

Totals 8,850,000$      7,162,469$     4,702,000$   

City of Coachella 5 Year Measure A Funding 
Capital Projects

FY 2022-23

FY 2022-23

FY 2019-20

FY 2020-21

FY 2021-22

FY 2023-24

-153-

ITEM 12.e.



 



 

ITEM  12.f.



 



TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  William B. Pattison, Jr., City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Investment Report – January 2019  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the investment report for January 2019. 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 
On April 11, 2018, the City of Coachella along with its component units (Sanitary District, 
Educational & Governmental Access Cable Corporation, Fire Protection District and Water 
Authority) approved and adopted the current “Statement of Investment Policy”. 
 
Pursuant to Section 16 of that policy, the City Treasurer shall provide to the City Council a 
monthly investment report which provides a clear picture of the status of the current investment 
portfolio. This report shall include, at a minimum, the following information for each type of 
investment held in the City’s investment portfolio: the issuer; amount of investment; current 
market value; yield on investment; income generated from investments; dollar amount invested 
on all securities, investments and moneys held by the local agency; and shall additionally include 
a description of any of the local agency’s funds, investments, or programs; and a description of 
unusual investment activity or developments during the month for which the report is prepared. 
This information shall be provided for all City and component unit pooled investments, as well 
as for bond accounts, which are managed by outside Fiscal Agents. 
 
The interest rates presented are the most current rates available as of the date of these reports. 
The market values presented for pooled City investments are based on closing prices for the 
related investments as of the date of these reports. This information was obtained from the Wall 
Street Journal or other reliable sources of market prices. 
 
The Market values presented for investments managed by contracted parties are based on 
amounts reported by the Fiscal Agent on the most recent bank statement to be market value as of 
the date of said bank statement. The purchase date and type of investment is not included for 
funds held by the fiscal agent. 

 

STAFF REPORT 
4/10/2019 

 

-157-

ITEM 12.f.



 
 

Attached is the Treasurer’s Report of Investments which includes an overview on investments 
which provides information on investment activity, withdrawals and deposits, interest earned, 
payment of interest and payment of principal as of the period ending January 31, 2019. In 
addition, this report includes detailed information and current activity on individual investments. 
 
All City investments are in compliance with the guidelines established for Authorized 
Investments as specified in the Investment Policy, Section 8. 
 
There was no unusual investment activity to report. 
 
The City and Districts have sufficient moneys to meet their expenditure requirements for the next 
six months. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None, this report is receive and file only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-158-

ITEM 12.f.



1 of 5 F:\Treasurer's Reports\Treasurer's Report 18-19.xlsx

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2018 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2019

CASH ON HAND

       Wells Fargo-General Checking N/A 4,557,555.73      3,254,709.49        -                     -                     -                       7,812,265.22      

Wells Fargo-Road Maintenance SB1 N/A 448,259.77         65,043.42             -                     -                     -                       513,303.19         

     Rabobank-Payroll Account 0.0% 7,143.53             84.47                    3.24                   -                     -                       7,231.24             

Rabobank-AG Summit Account 0.0% 13,562.96           -                        -                     -                     -                       13,562.96           

Rabobank-Special Gas Tax Account 0.0% 484,352.38         137,547.19           -                     -                     -                       621,899.57         

      Petty Cash N/A 3,075.00             -                        -                     -                     -                       3,075.00             

Total Cash on Hand 5,513,949.37      3,457,384.57        3.24                   -                     -                       8,971,337.18      

CASH WITH FISCAL AGENT

Union Bank of California varies 937,901.80         157,139.86           2,354.01            -                     -                       1,097,395.67      

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 4.6% 471,171.08         15,899.03             -                     -                     -                       487,070.11         

County of Riverside N/A 159,384.63         -                        706.77               -                     -                       160,091.40         

Total Cash with Fiscal Agent 1,568,457.51      173,038.89           3,060.78            -                     -                       1,744,557.18      

INVESTMENTS

State of California - LAIF 0.2% 4,584,933.88      -                        27,705.83          -                     -                       4,612,639.71      

Investment Management Acct 3.3% 18,760,832.56    -                        112,496.11        -                     -                       18,873,328.67    

Saving Account - Wells Fargo Bank 5,080.09             -                        -                     -                     -                       5,080.09             

Total Investments 23,350,846.53    -                        140,201.94        -                     -                       23,491,048.47    

Grand Total 30,433,253.41   3,630,423.46        143,265.96        -                       -                         34,206,942.83   ⑫

Reviewed by: Date:

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2019
Fiscal Year 2018 - 2019

DESCRIPTION

-159-

IT
E

M
 12.f.



2 of 5 F:\Treasurer's Reports\Treasurer's Report 18-19.xlsx

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2018 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2019

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2019
Fiscal Year 2018 - 2019

DESCRIPTION

INVESTMENTS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF)

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY( #004) 0.3% 2,388.92             -                        14.44                 -                     -                       2,403.36             

CITY GENERAL ACCOUNT( #171) 0.3% 2,767,751.56      -                        16,724.96          -                     -                       2,784,476.52      

COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT 0.3% 1,814,673.98      -                        10,965.71          -                     -                       1,825,639.69      

REDEVELOPMENT BONDS 0.3% 119.42                -                        0.72                   -                     -                       120.14                

TOTAL LAIF ACCOUNTS 4,584,933.88      -                        27,705.83          -                     -                       4,612,639.71      

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT ACC

MORGAN STANLEY 3.5% -                      -                        -                      

PFM Funds 3.5% 18,760,832.56    -                        112,496.11        -                     -                       18,873,328.67    

TOTAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT ACCT 18,760,832.56    -                        112,496.11        -                     -                       18,873,328.67    

SAVINGS & MONEY MARKET ACCOUNTS

POLICE EVIDENCE ACCT - B of A #049 0.1% 5,080.09             -                        -                     -                     5,080.09                                                                                             
TOTAL SAVINGS ACCOUNT 5,080.09             -                        -                     -                     -                       5,080.09             

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 23,350,846.53    -                        140,201.94        -                     -                       23,491,048.47    

-160-

IT
E

M
 12.f.



3 of 5 F:\Treasurer's Reports\Treasurer's Report 18-19.xlsx

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2018 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2019

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2019
Fiscal Year 2018 - 2019

DESCRIPTION

UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA (Cost Basis reported)

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY

CITY OF COACHELLA WATER: WATER REFUNDING BONDS 2012 SERIES
A/C #: 6712016201 Bond Fund 0.0% 148.33                157,139.86           0.31                   -                     -                       157,288.50         
A/C #: 6712016202 Interest Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712016203 Principal Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712016204 Reserve Fund 0.0% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                    
A/C #: 6712016206 Escrow Fund 2003 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      

COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY

COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT: WASTEWATER REV 2005-A COPS
A/C #: 6711755701 Bond Fund 0.0% 0.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       0.00                    
A/C #: 6711755702 Interest Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6711755703 Principal Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6711755704 Reserve Account 2.5% (0.00)                   -                        -                     -                     -                       (0.00)                   

RDA PA #4 2004 B  SERIES: TAX ALLOCATION BONDS
A/C #: 6711745801 Revenue Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6711745802 Interest Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6711745803 Principal Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6711745804 Reserve Fund 2.5% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      

Successor Agency to the Coachella Redevelopments Agency 2014 Series
A/C #: 6712104701 0.0% 298.06                -                        0.62                   -                     -                       298.68                
A/C #: 6712104702 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712104703 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712104704 0.0% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                    
A/C #: 6712104705 0.0% (0.00)                   -                        -                     -                     -                       (0.00)                   
A/C #: 6712104706 0.0% 0.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       0.00                    
A/C #: 6712104707 Escrow Funds 0.0% (0.00)                   -                        -                     -                     -                       (0.00)                   
A/C #: 6712104708 Escrow Funds 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      

-161-

IT
E

M
 12.f.



4 of 5 F:\Treasurer's Reports\Treasurer's Report 18-19.xlsx

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2018 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2019

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2019
Fiscal Year 2018 - 2019

DESCRIPTION

COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT

WASTEWATER SERIES 2015A
A/C #: 6712148600 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712148601 0.0% 28.74                  -                        -                     -                     -                       28.74                  
A/C #: 6712148602 0.0% 0.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       0.00                    
A/C #: 6712148603 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712148604 0.0% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                    
A/C #: 6712148605 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712148606 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712148607 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712148608 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      

COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT: PROJECT FUND 2011
A/C #: 6711963500 Project Fund 2011 0.0% 24,617.78           -                        45.58                 -                     -                       24,663.36           

COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MERGED PROJECT AREAS BONDS 98 & 99: BONDS 2013
A/C #: 6712071401 Interest Account 0.0% 186.04                -                        0.31                   -                     -                       186.35                
A/C #: 6712071402 Interest Acc 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712071403 Principal Acc 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712071404 Reserve Account 0.0% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                    

SA TO COACHELLA RDA REFUNDING BONDS SERIES 2016A & 2016B
A/C #: 6712160601 0.0% 518.04                -                        0.94                   -                     -                       518.98                
A/C #: 6712160602 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712160604 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712160604 0.0% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                    
A/C #: 6712160605 0.0% (0.00)                   -                        -                     -                     -                       (0.00)                   
A/C #: 6712160606 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712160607 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712160608 0.0% (0.00)                   -                        -                     -                     -                       (0.00)                   
A/C #: 6712160609 0.0% (0.00)                   -                        -                     -                     -                       (0.00)                   

COACHELLA LEASE BONDS

-162-

IT
E

M
 12.f.



5 of 5 F:\Treasurer's Reports\Treasurer's Report 18-19.xlsx

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2018 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2019

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2019
Fiscal Year 2018 - 2019

DESCRIPTION

A/C #: 6712179800 Special Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712179801 Interest Account 0.0% 10.54                  -                        17.88                 -                     -                       28.42                  
A/C #: 6712179802 Interest Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712179803 Principal Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      
A/C #: 6712179804 Reserve Account 3.4% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                    
A/C #: 6712179805 Project Fund 0.0% 912,088.27         -                        2,288.37            -                     -                       914,376.64         
A/C #: 6712179806 Project Fund 0.0% (0.00)                   -                        -                     -                     -                       (0.00)                   
A/C #: 6712179807 Project Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      

TOTAL UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA 937,901.80         157,139.86           2,354.01            -                       -                         1,097,395.67     

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.
GAS TAX BONDS SERIES 2008-A
A/C #: 22863900 Revenue Fund 0.0% 10,548.44           15,863.67             -                     -                     -                       26,412.11           
A/C #: 22863902 Interest Account 0.0% 244.31                19.64                    -                     -                     -                       263.95                
A/C #: 22863903 Interest Account 0.0% 258.98                0.42                      -                     -                     -                       259.40                
A/C #: 22863904 Reserve Fund 4.6% 451,237.50         1.04                      -                     -                     -                       451,238.54         
A/C #: 22863906 Administration Fund 0.0% 8,881.85             14.26                    -                     -                     -                       8,896.11             
A/C #: 22863909 Acquisition Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                                                                                                                                                                                                        

TOTAL WELLS FARGO BANK 471,171.08     15,899.03         -                 -                  -                   487,070.11     

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE - FIRE 159,377.43         -                        706.73               -                     -                       160,084.16         

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE - SANITARY 7.20                    -                        0.04                   -                     -                       7.24                    
                                                                                         

TOTAL COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 159,384.63         -                        706.77               -                     -                       160,091.40         

GRAND TOTAL FISCAL AGENT CASH 1,568,457.51      173,038.89           3,060.78            -                     -                       1,744,557.18      ⑪

-163-

IT
E

M
 12.f.



 



 

ITEM  12.g.



 



 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Jonathan Hoy P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer  
 
SUBJECT: Reimbursement Agreement by and between City of Coachella and 48 Van Buren, 

LLC for Van Buren Roadway Improvements, City Project No. ST-122 
  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the City Manager to execute a Reimbursement Agreement by and between City of 
Coachella and 48 Van Buren, LLC for Van Buren Roadway Improvements, City Project No. ST-
122 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 
The City of Coachella currently has a Roadway Improvement Project on Avenue 48 and Van 
Buren Street. The developer, 48 Van Buren LLC has a future project located at the southwest 
corner of Avenue 48 and Van Buren intersection that will require the installation of public 
improvements along the Van Buren street frontage of their project. The general scope of services 
includes but is not limited to: asphalt, curb & gutter, cross gutter, concrete sidewalk, signing & 
striping, sewer extension and new commercial driveway installation.   
 
The City and the Developer desire to have the City of Coachella take the lead role in the 
implementation of the roadway improvements. The City of Coachella will provide the 
administrative, technical, managerial, and support services necessary for the implementation of 
the project, to be constructed concurrently with Coachella Project #ST-78.  
 
The Developer agrees to deposit with the City of Coachella, within 30 days of executing this 
agreement, (two hundred forty-seven thousand fourteen dollars and seventy cents ($247,014.70) 
which represents one hundred percent (100%) of the costs to complete construction, including 
construction survey, inspection and materials testing for Developer’s share of the Project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The total cost to complete construction, including construction survey, inspection and a material 
testing for the Developer’s share of the Project is estimated to be two hundred forty-seven 
thousand fourteen dollars and seventy cents ($247,014.70). The City of Coachella shall not be 
obligated to commence the Developer’s share of the Project until after receipt of the Developer’s 
deposit.  

 

STAFF REPORT 
4/10/2019 

 

-167-

ITEM 12.g.



 



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Laurich Properties Agreement    1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

AND 

48 VAN BUREN, LLC 

FOR 

VAN BUREN ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS  

 

This Agreement is entered into this    1stof April      , by and between the City of Coachella, (hereinafter 

"COACHELLA"), and 48 Van Buren, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company., (hereinafter “Developer”) for 

Roadway Improvements to Van Buren, located within the City of Coachella.  The City of Coachella and the 

Developer are sometimes hereinafter referred to individually as the “PARTY” and collectively as the “PARTIES”.  

RECITALS 

A. Coachella currently has a Roadway Improvement Project on Avenue 48 and Van Buren Street. 

B. Developer has a future project located at the southwest corner of Avenue 48 and Van Buren intersection 

that will require the installation of public improvements along the Van Buren street frontage of their 

project. 

C. The general scope of services includes but is not limited to: asphalt, curb & gutter, cross gutter, concrete 

sidewalk, signing & striping, sewer extension and new commercial driveway installation.  All improvement 

being proposed within the limits shall be referred to as THE PROJECT. 

D. PARTIES desire to have the City of Coachella take the lead role in the implementation of the roadway 

improvements.  

E. COACHELLA will provide the administrative, technical, managerial, and support services necessary for 

the implementation of the PROJECT.to be constructed concurrently with Coachella Project #ST-78  

F. PARTIES desire to define herein the terms and conditions under which said the PROJECT is to be 

administered, engineered, coordinated, and constructed.   

 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties hereto agree as 

follows: 

-169-

ITEM 12.g.



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Laurich Properties Agreement    2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

SECTION 1 • COACHELLA AGREES: 

1. To  award and administer a public works contract for the construction of the  PROJECT in accordance 

with all applicable federal, state or local statutes, ordinances, orders, governmental requirements, laws or 

regulations, including but not limited to the local agency public construction codes, California Labor Code, 

and California Public Contract Code. 

2. To construct the PROJECT in accordance with approved PS&E documents. 

3. To furnish the Developer a final reconciliation of project expenses within ninety (90) days following the 

completion and acceptance of the PROJECT construction contract.  If final costs associated with the 

Developer’s improvements are in excess of the deposit provided in Section 2, COACHELLA shall include 

a final bill with the financial reconciliation.  If final costs associated with the Developer’s improvements are 

less than the deposit provided in Section 2, COACHELLA shall include a reimbursement for the difference 

with the financial reconciliation.   

 

SECTION 2 • DEVELOPER AGREES: 

1. To fund one hundred percent (100%) of the cost of the Developer’s share of the PROJECT as shown in 

Exhibit A. Developer agrees that should unforeseen circumstances arise which result in an increase of 

any costs over those shown in “Exhibit B", Developer  will in good faith amend this Agreement to include 

any such costs under this Agreement. 

2. To deposit with COACHELLA, within 30 days of executing this agreement, (two hundred forty-seven 

thousand fourteen dollars and seventy cents ($247,014.70))  (the “Deposit”), which represents one 

hundred percent (100%) of the costs to complete construction, including construction survey, inspection 

and materials testing for Developer’s share of the PROJECT, as provided in “Exhibit B”.   

SECTION 3 • IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The total cost to the Developer to complete construction, including construction survey, inspection and a 

material testing for the Developer’s share of the PROJECT is estimated to be two hundred forty-seven 

thousand fourteen dollars and seventy cents ($247,014.70) as detailed in “Exhibit B”.  

2. COACHELLA shall not be obligated to commence the Developer’s share of the PROJECT until after 

receipt of the Developer’s deposit as required in Section 2. 

3. No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed 

-170-

ITEM 12.g.



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Laurich Properties Agreement    3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

by all parties and no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on each 

party hereto. 

4. Neither Developer nor any officer or employee thereof shall be responsible for any damage or liability 

occurring by reason of any act or omission of COACHELLA under or in connection with any work, 

authority or jurisdiction delegated to COACHELLA under this Agreement.  It is further agreed that 

pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, COACHELLA shall fully indemnify and hold Developer 

harmless from any liability imposed for injury (as defined by Government Code Section 810.8) occurring 

by reason of any act or omission of COACHELLA under or in connection with any work, authority or 

jurisdiction delegated to COACHELLA under this Agreement. 

5. In the event that the Developer defaults in the performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement 

or materially breaches any of the provisions of this Agreement, COACHELLA shall have the option to 

terminate this Agreement upon 90 days written notice to the Developer. 

6. All notices, demands, invoices, and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in 

writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other address as the PARTIES may designate: 

  COACHELLA:        Developer: 

  City of Coachella    48 Van Buren, LLC   

  Attn: William B. Pattison                                                    By 48 Van Buren Mgmt. Co., Inc, its Manager 

  City Manager        Attn: Hank Gordon, president 

  1515 Sixth Street       10655 Park Run Drive #160 

  Coachella, CA  92236      Las Vegas, NV 89144-4590 

  Phone:  (760) 398-5744      Phone:  (702) 220-4500 

-171-

ITEM 12.g.



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Laurich Properties Agreement 4 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

APPROVALS 

COACHELLA Approvals 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 

 

 

 ______________________  Dated:  __________  

William B. Pattison 

        City Manager 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Carlos Campos 

     

 

By ____________________  Dated:  __________  

City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 ______________________  Dated:  __________  

Andrea Carranza 

      Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

Developer Approvals 

APPROVED BY: 

 

 _____________________  Dated:  ________  

Hank Gordon or Richard Gordon 

  CEO 

 

 
 

 
 
 

-172-

ITEM 12.g.



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Laurich Properties Agreement 5 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

EXHIBIT A 

VICINITY/PROJECT MAP 
 

-173-

ITEM 12.g.



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Laurich Properties Agreement 6 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
PROJECT COST 

 

 

-174-

ITEM 12.g.



 

ITEM  12.h.



 



 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Jonathan Hoy P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer  
 
SUBJECT: Reimbursement Agreement by and between City of Coachella and Raven Ridge 

Development for Van Buren Roadway Improvements, City Project No. ST-122  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the City Manager to execute a Reimbursement Agreement by and between City of 
Coachella and Raven Ridge Development for Van Buren Roadway Improvements, City Project 
No. ST-122 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 
The City of Coachella currently has a Roadway Improvement Project on Avenue 48 and Van 
Buren Street. The developer, Raven Ridge Development has a future project located at the 
southwest corner of Avenue 48 and Van Buren intersection that will require the installation of 
public improvements along the Van Buren street frontage of their project. The general scope of 
services includes but is not limited to: asphalt, curb & gutter, cross gutter, concrete sidewalk, 
signing & striping, sewer extension and new commercial driveway installation.   
 
The City and the Developer desire to have the City of Coachella take the lead role in the 
implementation of the roadway improvements. The City of Coachella will provide the 
administrative, technical, managerial, and support services necessary for the implementation of 
the project, to be constructed concurrently with Coachella Project #ST-78.  
 
The Developer agrees to deposit with the City of Coachella, within 30 days of executing this 
agreement, Sixty-five thousand eight hundred ninety-three dollars and twenty-five cents 
($65,893.25), which represents one hundred percent (100%) of the costs to complete 
construction, including construction survey, inspection and materials testing for Developer’s 
share of the Project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The total cost to complete construction, including construction survey, inspection and a material 
testing for the Developer’s share of the Project is estimated to be Sixty-five thousand eight 
hundred ninety-three dollars and twenty-five cents ($65,893.25). The City of Coachella shall not 
be obligated to commence the Developer’s share of the Project until after receipt of the 
Developer’s deposit.  

 

STAFF REPORT 
4/10/2019 

 

-177-

ITEM 12.h.



 



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Raven Ridge Development Agreement    1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

AND 

RAVEN RIDGE DEVELOPMENT 

FOR 

VAN BUREN ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS  

 

This Agreement is entered into this       of       , by and between the City of Coachella, (hereinafter 

"COACHELLA"), and Raven Ridge Development, (hereinafter “Developer”) for Roadway Improvements to Van 

Buren, located within the City of Coachella.  The City of Coachella and the Developer are sometimes hereinafter 

referred to individually as the “PARTY” and collectively as the “PARTIES”.  

RECITALS 

A. Coachella currently has a Roadway Improvement Project on Avenue 48 and Van Buren Street. 

B. Developer has a future project located at the southwest corner of Avenue 48 and Van Buren intersection 

that will require the installation of public improvements along the Van Buren street frontage of their 

project. 

C. The general scope of services includes but is not limited to: asphalt, curb & gutter, cross gutter, concrete 

sidewalk, signing & striping,  and new commercial driveway installation.  All improvement being proposed 

within the limits shall be referred to as THE PROJECT. 

D. PARTIES desire to have the City of Coachella take the lead role in the implementation of the roadway 

improvements.  

E. COACHELLA will provide the administrative, technical, managerial, and support services necessary for 

the implementation of the  PROJECT. 

F. PARTIES desire to define herein the terms and conditions under which said the PROJECT is to be 

administered, engineered, coordinated, and constructed.   

 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties hereto agree as 

follows: 

-179-

ITEM 12.h.



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Raven Ridge Development Agreement    2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

SECTION 1 • COACHELLA AGREES: 

1. To  award and administer a public works contract for the construction of the  PROJECT in accordance 

with all applicable federal, state or local statutes, ordinances, orders, governmental requirements, laws or 

regulations, including but not limited to the local agency public construction codes, California Labor Code, 

and California Public Contract Code. 

2. To construct the PROJECT in accordance with approved PS&E documents. 

3. To furnish the Developer a final reconciliation of project expenses within ninety (90) days following the 

completion and acceptance of the PROJECT construction contract.  If final costs associated with the 

Developer’s improvements are in excess of the deposit provided in Section 2, COACHELLA shall include 

a final bill with the financial reconciliation.  If final costs associated with the Developer’s improvements are 

less than the deposit provided in Section 2, COACHELLA shall include a reimbursement for the difference 

with the financial reconciliation.   

 

SECTION 2 • DEVELOPER AGREES: 

1. To fund one hundred percent (100%) of the cost of the Developer’s share of the PROJECT as shown in 

Exhibit A. Developer agrees that should unforeseen circumstances arise which result in an increase of 

any costs over those shown in “Exhibit B", Developer  will in good faith amend this Agreement to include 

any such costs under this Agreement. 

2. To deposit with COACHELLA, within 30 days of executing this agreement, (Sixty-five thousand eight 

hundred ninety-three dollars and twenty-five cents ($65,893.25))  (the “Deposit”), which represents one 

hundred percent (100%) of the costs to complete construction, including construction survey, inspection 

and materials testing for Developer’s share of the PROJECT, as provided in “Exhibit B”.   

SECTION 3 • IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The total cost to the Developer to complete construction, including construction survey, inspection and a 

material testing for the Developer’s share of the PROJECT is estimated to be Sixty-five thousand eight 

hundred ninety-three dollars and twenty-five cents ($65,893.25)  as detailed in “Exhibit B”.  

2. COACHELLA shall not be obligated to commence the Developer’s share of the PROJECT until after 

receipt of the Developer’s deposit as required in Section 2. 

3. No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed 

-180-

ITEM 12.h.



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Raven Ridge Development Agreement    3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

by all parties and no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on each 

party hereto. 

4. Neither Developer nor any officer or employee thereof shall be responsible for any damage or liability 

occurring by reason of any act or omission of COACHELLA under or in connection with any work, 

authority or jurisdiction delegated to COACHELLA under this Agreement.  It is further agreed that 

pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, COACHELLA shall fully indemnify and hold Developer 

harmless from any liability imposed for injury (as defined by Government Code Section 810.8) occurring 

by reason of any act or omission of COACHELLA under or in connection with any work, authority or 

jurisdiction delegated to COACHELLA under this Agreement. 

5. In the event that the Developer  defaults in the performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement 

or materially breaches any of the provisions of this Agreement, COACHELLA shall have the option to 

terminate this Agreement upon 90 days written notice to the Developer. 

6. All notices, demands, invoices, and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in 

writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other address as the PARTIES may designate: 

  COACHELLA:        Developer: 

  City of Coachella       Raven Ridge Development 

  Attn: William B. Pattison      Attn: David Schuman  

  City Manager        Developer and Managing Partner  

  1515 Sixth Street       1014 S. Westlake Blvd # 14-261 

  Coachella, CA  92236      Westlake Village, CA 

  Phone:  (760) 398-5744      91361Phone:  (213) 321-9689 

 

-181-

ITEM 12.h.



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Raven Ridge Development Agreement 4 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

APPROVALS 

COACHELLA Approvals 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 

 

 

 ______________________  Dated:  __________  

William B. Pattison 

 City Manager 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Carlos Campos 

     

 

By ____________________  Dated:  __________  

City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 ______________________  Dated:  __________  

Andrea Carranza 

     Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

Developer Approvals 

APPROVED BY: 

 

 _____________________  Dated:  ________  

 David Schuman 

  Managing Partner 

 

 
 

 
 
 

-182-

ITEM 12.h.



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Raven Ridge Development Agreement 5 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

EXHIBIT A 

VICINITY/PROJECT MAP 
 

-183-

ITEM 12.h.



Van Buren Roadway Improvements 

Raven Ridge Development Agreement 6 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
PROJECT COST 

 

 

-184-

ITEM 12.h.



 

ITEM  13.a.



 



 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Jonathan Hoy, P.E., Assistant City Manager/City Engineer  
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2019-22, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella 

to adopt a list of Projects for Fiscal Year 2019/20, Funded by SB 1: Road Repair 
and Accountability Act.  

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution No. 2019-22, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella to 
adopt a list of Projects for Fiscal Year 2019/20, Funded by SB 1: Road Repair and 
Accountability Act. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On April 28, 2017, the Governor signed Senate Bill 1 (SB 1) (Beall, Chapter 5, Statutes 2017), 
which is known as the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017. The purpose and intention 
of the Act is to address basic road maintenance, rehabilitation, and critical safety needs on both 
the state highway and local streets and road systems, as well as provide transit assistance. 
 
Prior to the passage of SB 1, cities and counties were delaying or canceling projects and 
preparing to lay off staff. Due to lack of funding, basic maintenance of the local streets and road 
system, repair and replacement of bridges, safety improvements and multi-modal enhancements 
were all at risk. 
 
The new transportation bill will provide cities and counties an opportunity to catch up on years 
of unfunded maintenance needs that have plagued our roadways for years. Maintenance and 
rehabilitation projects will extend the service life of our local streets, roads and bridges. Cities 
and Counties will also use SB 1 funds for complete streets projects, increasing mobility options 
for residents, and will employ, to the extent possible green technologies, materials and methods 
to reduce impacts to the environment from transportation projects. 
  
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 
SB 1 includes historic accountability and transparency measures. Cities and counties will adopt 
project lists at the start of every Fiscal Year and also provide year end reporting on completed 
projects. 
 
The City of Coachella is proposing the following projects as follows: 

 

STAFF REPORT 
4/10/2019 

 

-187-

ITEM 13.a.



 
 

Proposed Project 1: La Ponderosa Homes – The existing pavement throughout the 
neighborhood requires rehabilitation.  
Location: La Ponderosa Dr, Naomi Ct, Perez St, Romualda Ct, Ortiz St, Hernandez St  
Schedule for Completion: Spring 2020 
Estimated Cost: $600,000 
Estimated Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 
 
Proposed Project 2: Phase II Slurry REAS – The existing pavement of various streets 
throughout the City require rehabilitation.  
Location: Araby Ave, Cairo St, Cypress St, Damascus Ave, Date Ave, Dos Palmas Ave, 
Jennifer Way, Las Palmas St, Medina St, Morgan Ave, Nelson Ave, Oasis Palmas Ave, Shady 
Ln, Tripoli Way 
Schedule for Completion: Fall 2019 
Estimated Cost: $500,000 
Estimated Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 
 
Proposed Project 3: Vista Del Norte north of I-10 
Location: Vista Del Norte from City Limits to west side of Dillon Road 
Schedule for Completion: Spring 2020 
Estimated Cost: $600,000 
Estimated Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 
 
The City of Coachella is carrying over the following projects from Fiscal Year 2018/19 as 
follows: 
 
Proposed Project 1: Peacock Palms Neighborhood Pavement Rehabilitation – The existing 
pavement throughout the neighborhood requires rehabilitation. 
Location: Calle Leon, Paseo Laredo, Via Durango, Via Hermosa, Vera Cruz, Calle De Vega, 
Avenida Cortez, Pavon Palma 
Schedule for Completion: Fall 2019 
Estimated Cost: $380,000.00 
Estimated Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 
 
Proposed Project 2: Avenida Del Oro Neighborhood Pavement Rehabilitation – The existing 
pavement throughout the neighborhood requires rehabilitation. 
Location: Avenida Del Oro, Avenida Del Parque, Corte Del Parque 
Schedule for Completion: Fall 2019 
Estimated Cost: $260,000.00  
Estimated Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The SB 1 Anticipated revenues are for an amount of $806,797.00 for the Fiscal Year 2019/20. 
 
 
 

-188-

ITEM 13.a.



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-22 
 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2019/20 FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND 
ACCOUNTABILITY ACT 

 
WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 

(Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor 
in April 2017 in order to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls 
statewide; and 
 

WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure 
the residents of our City are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and 
which projects have been completed each fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City must adopt by resolution a list of all projects proposed to receive 
fiscal year funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by 
SB 1 , which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed 
schedule for the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City, will receive an estimated $806,797.00 in RMRA funding in Fiscal 
Year 2019-20 from SB 1; and 

 
WHEREAS, this is the third year in which the City is receiving SB 1 funding and will 

enable the City to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety 
improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility options 
for the traveling public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has undergone a robust public process to ensure public input into 
our community’s transportation priorities/the project list; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City used a Pavement Management System to develop the SB 1 project 
list to ensure revenues are being used on the most high-priority and cost-effective projects that 
also meet the communities priorities for transportation investment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City maintain and rehabilitate 
neighborhood streets/roads, adding active transportation infrastructure throughout the City this 
year and hundreds of similar projects into the future; and 
 

WHEREAS, the 2018 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment 
found that the City streets and roads are in “good” condition and this revenue will help us 
increase the overall quality of our road system and over the next decade will bring our streets and 
roads into an “excellent ” condition; and 
 

WHEREAS, without revenue from SB 1, the City/County, would have otherwise been 
canceling projects throughout the community and/or laying off city/county staff; and 

-189-

ITEM 13.a.



Resolution No. 2019-22 

WHEREAS, if the Legislature and Governor failed to act, city streets and county roads 
would have continued to deteriorate, having many and varied negative impacts on our 
community; and 

 
WHEREAS, cities and counties own and operate more than 81 percent of streets and 

roads in California, and from the moment we open our front door to drive to work, bike to  
school, or walk to the bus station, people are dependent upon a safe, reliable local transportation 
network; and 
 

WHEREAS, modernizing the local street and road system provides well-paying 
construction jobs and boosts local economies; and 
 

WHEREAS, the local street and road system is also critical for farm to market needs, 
interconnectivity, multimodal needs, and commerce; and 
 

WHEREAS, police, fire, and emergency medical services all need safe reliable roads to 
react quickly to emergency calls and a few minutes of delay can be a matter of life and death; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, maintaining and preserving the local street and road system in good 
condition will reduce drive times and traffic congestion, improve bicycle safety, and make the 
pedestrian experience safer and more appealing, which leads to reduce vehicle emissions helping 
the State achieve its air quality and greenhouse gas emissions reductions goals; and 
 

WHEREAS, restoring roads before they fail also reduces construction time which results 
in less air pollution from heavy equipment and less water pollution from site run-off; and 
 

WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads 
infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets 
infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant 
positive co-benefits statewide.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by 
the City Council of the City of Coachella, State of California, as follows: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 
2. The following list of proposed projects will be funded in-part or solely with fiscal 

year 2019-20 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues: 
 
Proposed Project 1: La Ponderosa Homes – The existing pavement throughout the 
neighborhood requires rehabilitation.  
Location: La Ponderosa Dr, Naomi Ct, Perez St, Romualda Ct, Ortiz St, Hernandez St  
Schedule for Completion: Spring 2020 
Estimated Cost: $600,000 
Estimated Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 
 

-190-

ITEM 13.a.



Resolution No. 2019-22 

Proposed Project 2: Phase II Slurry REAS – The existing pavement of various streets 
throughout the City require rehabilitation.  
Location: Araby Ave, Cairo St, Cypress St, Damascus Ave, Date Ave, Dos Palmas Ave, 
Jennifer Way, Las Palmas St, Medina St, Morgan Ave, Nelson Ave, Oasis Palmas Ave, 
Shady Ln, Tripoli Way 
Schedule for Completion: Fall 2019 
Estimated Cost: $500,000 
Estimated Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 
 
Proposed Project 3: Vista Del Norte north of I-10 
Location: Vista Del Norte from City Limits to west side of Dillon Road 
Schedule for Completion: Spring 2020 
Estimated Cost: $600,000 
Estimated Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 
 
3. The following previously proposed and adopted projects may utilize fiscal year 

2019-20 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With the 
relisting of these projects in the adopted fiscal year resolution, the City is reaffirming to the 
public and the State our intent to fund these projects with Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Account revenues: 

 
Proposed Project 1: Peacock Palms Neighborhood Pavement Rehabilitation – The 
existing pavement throughout the neighborhood requires rehabilitation. 
Location: Calle Leon, Paseo Laredo, Via Durango, Via Hermosa, Vera Cruz, Calle De 
Vega, Avenida Cortez, Pavon Palma 
Schedule for Completion: Fall 2019 
Estimated Cost: $380,000.00 
Estimated Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 
 
Proposed Project 2: Avenida Del Oro Neighborhood Pavement Rehabilitation – The 
existing pavement throughout the neighborhood requires rehabilitation. 
Location: Avenida Del Oro, Avenida Del Parque, Corte Del Parque 
Schedule for Completion: Fall 2019 
Estimated Cost: $260,000.00  
Estimated Useful Life: Twenty years with proper maintenance 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 10th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 
Steven A. Hernandez 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 

-191-

ITEM 13.a.



Resolution No. 2019-22 

 
 
 
Angela M. Zepeda 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

 
Carlos Campos 
City Attorney 

-192-

ITEM 13.a.



Resolution No. 2019-22 

STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA COUNTY 
OF RIVERSIDE CITY 
OF COACHELLA 

) 
) ss. 
) 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-22 was duly adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 10th day of 
April, 2019 by the following vote of Council: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 

 
Andrea J. Carranza, MMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

-193-

ITEM 13.a.



 


	AGENDA
	1. CALL TO ORDER: — 5:00 p.m. 
	2. ROLL CALL:
	3. PUBLIC COMMENTS (CLOSED SESSION ITEMS):
	4. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION:
	a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING EXISTING LITIGATION pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1). 
Name of case: City of Coachella v. Thomas, Superior Court case number PSC 1504858
	b. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING EXISTING LITIGATION pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1). 
Name of case: Genevieve Thomas v. City of Coachella Superior Court case number PSC 1801086
	c. CONFERENCE with Labor Negotiator Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6: 

City Labor Negotiator:City Manager William B. Pattison, Jr./
Human Resources Manager Sandy Krause
Public Works Director Maritza MartinezEmployee Organization: Teamsters Local 1932 Representing Mid-Management Employees
	d. CONFERENCE with Labor Negotiator Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6: 

City Labor Negotiator:City Manager William B. Pattison, Jr.Employee Organization: Management Employees

	5. RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING: — 6:00 p.m. 
	6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	7. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS:
	8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
	9. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:
	a. Special Meeting Minutes of a Coachella City Council Study Session held on March 27, 2019.
	[CouncilMinutes-03-27-2019 - Study Session.pdf]

	b. Regular Meeting Minutes ofMarch 27,2019, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection District, Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella Redevelopment Agency.
	[CouncilMinutes-03-27-2019.pdf]


	10. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS:
	a. Recognition of 2019 Senior Inspiration Award Recipient Baudelio Sanchez
	[Baudelio Sánchez- Senior Inspiration Award.pdf]

	b. Proclaiming May is Mental Health Month
	[May 2019 as Mental Health Month.pdf]


	11. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:
	12. CONSENT CALENDAR:
	a. Voucher Listings- Manual Checks/FY 2018-19 Expenditures as of April 10, 2019, $1,343,614.88.
	[190410 Warrant Register.pdf]

	b. Adopt Ordinance No. 1137  An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Coachella, California, Adding Chapter 2.26 to Title 2 and Amending Sections 2.28.040 and 2.32.010 of the Municipal Code Regarding Commission Requirement (Second Reading)
	[Staff Report.doc]
	[COACHELLA_ Ordinance Updating Commission Requirements (Clean) - Second Reading-c1.DOC]
	[COACHELLA_ Ordinance Updating Commission Requirements (Marked-Up) - Second Reading-c1.DOC]

	c. 2018-2019 Investment Policy:1.	Resolution No. 2019-17 a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella2.	Resolution No. WA-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Water Authority3.	Resolution No. SD-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Sanitary District4.	Resolution No. FD-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Fire Protection District5.	Resolution No. CBL-2019-01, a Resolution of the Coachella Education and Government Access Cable Channel Corporation
	[Staff Report.doc]
	[Coachella Investment Police Approved Feb 2018.PDF]
	[Coachella Investment Policy_ PFM Comments_4-2-19.docx]
	[Coachella_IP Memo 2019_Final.pdf]
	[InvestmentPolicyReso City 2018-19.docx]
	[InvestmentPolicyReso Water 2018-19.docx]
	[InvestmentPolicyReso Sanitary 2018-19.docx]
	[InvestmentPolicyReso Fire 2018-19.docx]
	[InvestmentPolicyReso Cable 2018-19.docx]

	d. Resolution No. 2019-23, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella, California, Approving Final Parcel Map No. 37083
	[Staff Report.doc]
	[Parcel Map 37083 Resolution .doc]
	[SR and Conditions.pdf]
	[NRO 4th check - PM 37083 sht 1.pdf]
	[NRO 4th check - PM 37083 sht 2.pdf]

	e. Maintenance of Effort Certification Statements Fiscal Year 2019/2020, the Local Streets and Roads Revenue Projections, as well as the Projected Five Year Measure A Capital Improvement Plans Budget for Measure A Funding
	[Staff Report.doc]
	[Maintenance of Effort Cert.pdf]
	[Measure A Allocation.pdf]
	[Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures end 6-30-18.pdf]
	[Attachment B - Measure A CIP 20-24.pdf]
	[CIP 5 Year Measure A FY19-20 thru FY23-24.pdf]

	f. Investment Report - January 2019
	[Staff Report.doc]
	[01-2019 Treasurers Report 18-19.pdf]

	g. Reimbursement Agreement by and between City of Coachella and 48 Van Buren, LLC for Van Buren Roadway Improvements, City Project No. ST-122
	[Staff Report.doc]
	[Draft 48 Van Buren LLC Agreement 4-3-2019.pdf]

	h. Reimbursement Agreement by and between City of Coachella and Raven Ridge Development for Van Buren Roadway Improvements, City Project No. ST-122
	[Staff Report.doc]
	[Revised Van Buren Agreement Raven Ridge Dev.pdf]


	13. NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE):
	a. Resolution No. 2019-22, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella to adopt a list of Projects for Fiscal Year 2019/20, Funded by SB 1: Road Repair and Accountability Act.
	[Staff Report.doc]
	[Resolution Proposed Streets 032719.docx]


	14. PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL):
	15. PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):
	16. REPORTS AND REQUESTS:
	a. Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees.
	b. City Manager's Comments.

	17. ADJOURNMENT:

